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Executive Summary

Colorado Paint Stewardship Law

PaintCare is the representative stewardship organization of the Colbi@dtutacPaint Stewardship
Program, codified in the Colorado Revised Statutes, Title 2kméaitmental Control, Article 17 Waste
Diversion and Recycling, Part 4 Archigd@aimt Stewardship Programs. The Colorado Paint Product
Stewardship Lastates:

(1) The General Assembly hereby finds and declares that paint disptesknvironmental and public
health problems, and these problems should be addressed through tleaiatjperaf
environmentally sound management practices for recyclingnpaster architectural paint.

(2) To that end, it is the General Assembly’s intent to establish ao$ystemnstewardship programs
that:

(a) Provide substantial cost savings to housdtaadrdous waste collection program;

(b) Significantly increased the number of: (I) Postconsumer architecturalgaiohcgites; and
(I) Recycling opportunities for household, businesses, aném#natogs of postconsumer
architectural paint; and

(c) Exemplifies the principles of a prodoentered approach to environmental protection, often
referred to as “Product Stewardship.”

HIGHLIGHTS

Stes, BEvents, and Sevice. Bythe end 02016 PaintCare established 155 yeand (referred to as permanent
in theColoraddaw) paint dropff sites. Of these, 137 are retailerslzaytepresen87%of potential retail
participants. The remaining yeamd sites include eight household hazardous waste (HHVe&} falorkte
latexpaint recyclergndseversolidwastemanagement (SWHRakilities ¢ne transfer station, one landfill,
and five recycling centershe 155 yeaound dropff sites provided a site withinribes 0f94.6% of
Colorado’s residents.

PaintCare also managed paint from supplemental sites that con§4tetl\df drojpff events, four
retailerawith partialyear participatioand23 painonly dropff eventg20 latexeventsand threevents
hosted by PaintCaré) addition, PaintCgvartnered witkight municipal dodo-door (D2D) collection
programsFinallyPaintCare conducté&®direct large volumack-ys (LVP)f paint (more than 300
gallons), and serviced a painting contractor, a university amdaantégancéacility, tlat generated large
volumes of paint on a recurring basis.

Paint Mllection Vdume. The program collected an estimated 645,232 galldpsocesse®72,029allons
of postconsumer paint. Latex paint madéaUpof the total pairii% of latex paint was reused (distributed
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in the original containergl% was made into recyctamhtent paint% was used as alternative daily ¢over
and1% wasunrecyclabland sent to landfilDibased paint made @8% of the total paid% was nesed,
and96% was used as a fuel. In addif86fons of metal and plastic containers were recycled.

Expenses and Revenue. The program is funded through fees on newsadést 3entson pints and quarts;
75 centon 1gallon containers; and $1.60 eyabon containers. Approximate3y3million gallons of
architectural paints were sold in Colona@®16. The program collectédr$8,50tn fees from these
sales.

Expenses, including paint transportation aedgsing, outreach and education, staffing, and administrative
costs wereb5,423,303The program end@®16with a surplus 2,114,696

The processing cost2016was$8.07per gallopa decrease from th&®07in the first sknonth reporting
period

Pant Recovery Rde. The paint recovery ratehe number of gallons of postconsumer paint collected or
processed (PaintCare uses processed) divided by the numbemobfjakw paint sold in the same period
—wasb5.0%This increased froB13% in the first sixmonth reporting period.

Qutreach and Educaion. Outreach effortwere increased significantly amdudethe distribution o variety
of instore print materials and signage, television, radio, digiglisewispaper, and outdoor (billboard)
advertising

PROGRAM PLAN AND ANNAL REPORT

The Colorado Paint Stewardship Law required the submissionm@ral apa program plangsrio the
start of thgprogram. The Colorado Department of Public Health and Emti(@QDPHE) approved
PaintCare’s Program Plan in June 2015 and the Colorado program Belyah, 2015. PaintCare’s
Colorado Program Plan is available from Paint@absite.

The Colorado Paint Stewardship Law requires the submission of an annual B¥pE toy March 31 each
year. The first annual report covered the six nfootguly 1 tecember 31, 20Ikhis reporis the first
to covera full12month calendar year.

Per the Colorado Paint Stewardship Law, the annual reports nalgst incl

() A description of the method or methods used to reduce, reuse, collect, tragsfErane process
postconsumer architectural paint;

(I The total volume, gallons, and type of postconsumer paint collected, withalaa down by: (A)
Collection site; and (B) Method of waste handling used to tedletted postconsumer
architectural paint, such as reuse, recycling, energgryear waste disposal;

(1)  The total volume, in gallons, of postconsumer architectural paint sold in Bptbegdooducer or
producers participating in the paint stewardship program;
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(V)

(V)

(V1)

(Vi)

For the education and outreach program implemented in compliance with sE£04 25 (i): (A)
Samples of any materials distributed; and (B) A description of theloggthaed and the results of
the evaluation conducted pursuant to sectickvV284 (2) (i) (11l). The results must include the
percentage of consumers, paintingtractors and retailers made aware of the ways to reduce the
generation of postconsumer architectural paint, available opportunities fopasisersfumer
architectural paint and collection options for postconsumer architecturatpelimigr

The name, location, and hours of operation of each facility adoedved from the list developed in
accordance with section-23404 (2) (f);

Any proposed changes to the paint stewardship program elareditive director shall review any
prgposed changes set forth in the annual report in accordantew&biew procedures for a revised
plan, as set forth in section 26404 (3).

A copy of an independent third party's report auditing the paint stewardship preguadit. riust
indude a detailed list of the program's costs and revenues.
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Section 1. Paint Collection, Transportation and Process

Annual Report Statutory Citation
Colorado Revised Statute, Title 25. Article 17. Part 4. Architectuest/&aistiStProgram

Sectim 2517405 (3)(a) On or after March 31 of the second year of a paint stevaayidship pr
implementation, and annually thereafter, one or more participating fnodwsteverdship organization
contracted by one or more producers, shall submit a report to the @sexxtotivkesicribing the progress of
the paint stewardship program. The paint stewardship program repoltideutstariollowing information
from the preceding calendar year:

() A description of the method or methods used to reduce, reuse, collettrémasmoand process
postconsumer architectural paint.

(V) The name, location, and hours of operation of each facility added dramntioedidt developed in
accordance with section5404 (2)(f).

A. PAINT DROPROFF SITE,EVENTS AND SERVICES

The Colorado Paint Stewardship Law requires a program that increasastig@gdor consumers to

properly manage leftover paint and reduces costs to local governmemstheriPaintCare program, most
waste paint was handlecheit through household hazardous waste (HHW) programs, local latex mcycler
by drying and disposing of latex p&iptvever not all areas of the state were provided these seidtes

of these optionkadeligibilityrestrictionsandsomechargedarticipants to take their paint.

Qualifying businesses (Conditionally Exempt Small Quantayo@eoeCESQGS) could cesgainHHW
programsandany businesBegardless of generator sirasinessesould als@ontract with a private
hazardous wasteauler for paint recycling servieghough the cost was generally gosthibitive fomany
painting contractors and other small businesses.

To increase recycling opportunities for Colorado households, businestiessandtoleftover pajrall
suitable locations were invited to participate as PaintCawaffosites, provided they met PaintCare’s
operational requiremeni&he requirementsclue adequate space for storage of paint collection bins and
willingness to accept all program produatsxland olbased products). PaintCare reached out to paint
retailers, material reuse stores, household hazardous wastagjauiasolid wastmanagemerfacilities

to invite them to partneiththe progranand serve againt dropoff sites.

By the rd 0f2016 the Colorado PaintCare progranmibagearround drogff sites located throughout the
state.For the purpose of defining convenience, PaintCare consi@efimewiling events), defined by the
physical address, as “yeannd” if the sitis open at least one day per month, every month of the year. Sites
that are open less frequently are considered supplemental sgebaSitlose for business or stop
participating in the PaintCare program during the reporting period are alsedsugidiemental and are

noted as being partigar only.
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Retail sites which did not previously prggdiEonsumer paint managemssnvics, made ud37of the
yearroundsites.Four retail locations left the program before the endyafafaed are categorized as
partialyear onlyn the supplemental site lifhe remaining yessund sites consisted efght HHW

collection facilitieseverSWMacilities ¢ne transfer station, one landfill, five recycling ceatatghree
latexrecycles. The program also mandgaint fron34 HHW dropff evenandfrom 23 painbnly

collection event®0 lateeventsandthreePaintCare hostez’ent3 held throughout tretate eight

municipal D2progams,conducted6large volumeickupsof paint (more than 300 gallons), and serviced
a citymaintenancéacility, a painting contractor, and a universitgenerated large volumes of paint on a
recurring basis.

PaintCare accepts both latex antaskd paint at all droff sites (excepatexonly events), as well as
from LVPs. Households and qualifying businesses are eligible tePagsg@aee program. Servicing
businesses, though, is optional for HHW progwraenSWNacilities PaintCare dregff sites, events, and
services are summiaed in the following tablend are shown on the maps beginning onlgage

SUMMARDFPAINTCAREROROFFSITERANDSERVICES

YEAR 1 YEAR 2

YEARROUND DR@WF SITES 2015(6 MOS.| 2016
Paint Retailers 127 137
HHW Facilities 6 8
Solid Wastdanagemerfacilities 2 7
Paint Recyclers 3 3
Total 138 155
SUPPLEMENTAL SITHB SERVICES

HHW Events 18 34
LatexEvents 5 20
PaintCare Events - 3
Paint Retailers (partigar only) 2 4
Doorto-Door Programs 8 8
Large Volume Pitkps 47 66
Recurring.arge Volume Pithkp Sites 1 3
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The following subsections discuss the various pairbffilsifes, events, and services provided by the
Colorado prograr8ection 2 of this report details the volumes of paint collected by each site type and
service.

Al. Paint Retailers

Paint retailers are ideal paint drtifsites because they are located throughout the state, are often centrally
located in cities and towns, are open five or more days per week, aaff feandiar with paint products
andhow to safly handle themnin addition, their customers are likely to have some leftovangaiften

ask store staff for advice on what to do with it.

Prior to the start of the program, three rounds of mailingsaenete paint retailers that included

informaton about retailer requirements under the new law and atwouinigea PaintCare drofb site

(current copies of the fact sheets are provided ippleadix)ln addition, two webinars were offered for
retailers to learn about the program and ask questiod a video was posted on PaintCare’s website that
explains the program and shows what it takes to be a PaintCafedit®p

PaintCare is aware of 547 retailers that sell paint in Cdtalémleing the general outre&ehetailergprior
to the start of the program, PaintCare staff visited the majority of potential paiattnets in person and
at meetings with groups of store manadgiedf did not visit big box stolmause their corporate staff
informed PaintCare that they were rmoinphg to volunteer their stores to serve asofrgfies.Site
recruitmentcontinued in 2@L

Without big boanda fewvariety storeshe number of potential retail dofpsites was871 (Last year the
number of potential retailers was incorrectly reportedskeeeaintCare mistakenly counted some big box
stores as potential site©Jf these71 potential stores, 18¥7%)participated in the programyasarround

paint dropoff sitesin 216 Retailers participate in the program to increase foot traffic through their stores
and to provide an additional service for their custofhersames and addresses of the participating stores
are provided in the appendix
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PaintCare provides matksto drojff sites to educate customers and
promote the program as shown here at Lakeridge Ace Hardware in Lakewood.

A2. Household Hazardous Waste Programs

In the year leading up to the launch of the program, PaintCare met in person with niatst ©@Hhik\s
programs, held several stakeholder meetings in coordin&ti@DRHE, and held several webinars for those
who could not attend in person. Print rnassfor HHW programs about the benefits of participating in the
PaintCare program were made available to the HHW community (see the Hétifattegapendix).

Most HHW programs in Colorado participated in the PaintCare progré&@idutirey wee comprisedf

eight HHW facilities aBd HHW drojpff eventsOne of the HHW facilities was on the SoutheTmihte
Reservatiorkl Paso, Boulder, Waldd Larimer Counties all have reuse programs to allow googajnality

to be reused locallglPaso and Pitkin Counties reprocess good quality latex paieisieal reontent paint

for local useThe names and locationsadithe HHW facilities and events that participated in 2016 are listed
in the appendix

PaintCareontinues tavork diligenyl to contract with local governments that wish to participate in the
PaintCare prograrfihe only programs not yet participating in the progr&iagiedesaandSummit
counties and thewrecontinuingliscussions with PaintCaigout joining the program

Many HHW programs helped promote PaintCare to their area residenisnltoatistiributing brochures,
several programs partnered with Paint©@am®mot the program on their municipal websitesugh
billing inserts, and other outreach masasiaére PaintCare provided artwork and language for their use.
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Pitco eprocessegaint for sale at Pitkin County Hid\ility.

A3. Solid Waste Management Facilities

PaintCardas nteracted with solid waste transfer stations, recycling facilities, and faraifils the
Colorado Solid Waste Association of North America (SWAS@Ipbeadb Association for Recycl®gRR
events and networka fact sheet was developed anadle &ailable¢o waste and recycling facilities to
explain the PaintCare program and potential benefits to their facilidesdopyr of the fact sheet is
available ithe appendix). These types of facilities participate asftirgjies to expand the sies
provided to their customers and help keep paint out of thestneeste.

In 2016PaintCare addéglean Valley Recycling Center, Lake County Landfill, Slitstélasdo-Recycle

Centers in Arvada and Denver, and Timberline Recycling Eertt€xllins as paint dwwip sites The

addition ofClean Valley Recycling in Spinkided a service in a very remote area of the state and is the only
SWMF to offer reuse.

Paint@reis continung its efforts to adsblid waste management facilitessirop off sitesand isespecially
interested igites located in rural communities and athderserved are#isat don’bave many retail sites

One transfer statipone landfilgndfiverecycling centsiparticipated as dragf sitesin 2016 Thenames
and addressesf these sitearelistedin the appendix
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A4. Reuse Stores

PaintCare identified 22 material reuse stoP@sHabitat for Humanity ReSsaed two others. Along with
participating as dregff sites, reuse stores can operate paint reuse programs bygdonsgiling good
quality leftover paint back to the local community to use. PaintCare providesatomfmreuse
programs. See fadheet about reimbursement for reuse activitibg igppendix.

However, PaintCare has found in Colorado, as well as in otharePaaigs, that reuse stores that sell
remanufactured/recycledntent paint are often reluctant to become PaintCare itead@esause it is
more profitable (and simpler) to only sell recgolgdnt paint thato add postconsumirartially full cans
of paint to their shelves.

PaintCare was unable to recruit any reuse stores2litjgut will continue its efforts recruit them in the
future

A5. Paint-Only Drop-Off Events

Paintonly dropoff events are held to help clean out large volumes ofigiguatht and to provide additional
services in densgbppulated and underserved areas.

GreenSheei localatexpaintregycler held20latexdropoff eventdn 2016Because GreenSheen is not a
hazardous waste handler, they only accept latex paint at theiaedett not accept-bésed paint. Tire
events were held in partnership with various organizationsgretudé@owner associations (HOA), schools,
and othecommunityorganizations.

PaintCare heltireepaintonly dropff events in Thornton, Denver, and Brighton. PaintCaredaaltepte
progam products (latex andHodsed)andthe events wermgpen to all households and qualifying businesses
in the stateThe events dreawver2,600 participantghe evenin Denver wabe largest PaintCare event
across nine programs.

PaintCarevents alsprovide an excellent outreach opportunity; PaintCare staff at the events provide
participants information about their nearby;rgead dromff sites.The locations of tH2g016PaintCare
and latex events are provided in the appendix.

PaintCare continués identify underserved areas of the state and is planning mésere261 including
events in rural areas of the state far fromrgead drop off sites.
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PaintCare Drepff Event at Denver South High School

A6. Large Volume Pick-Up Service

PaintCare’mrge volumeick-p (LVPkervie provides @onvenienservice fopainting contractors and
others who haeaccumulated large volumes of paigenerally more than 300 galld®&ntCare has
changdits terminology for some of théamye viumesites.

LVP Stes. These are sites thedceive a single or infrequent pigKusually less than 3 per yearsangly

called large volume pigg sitesLVP siteslonot have a contract with PaintCare and do not keep PaintCare
collection bins osite. InsteadPaintCars haulerdringbinsto the site on the scheduled pipkdatethe

hauler and site staff fill the bins together, anétiler takes thegins awayhe same day

PaintCare arrangéélarge volumpick-upsrom57LVP sites. The userstbis service included painting
contractors, property management companies, hotels, public school distigsacstudios, thrift

stores, citynaintenancéacilitiesand household®ainting contractors often store paint for futueeous
because it is expensive to dispose of. Property management conmolacidieges are left with excess or
aging paint from previous tenants or from repainting their Buitthitgjs collegesand public schools are
constantly repainting the fa@htithey manage, inside and out. Studios are used for all typpeogdcist
that usually involve paint and there are always some leovaeesmunicipal facilities and thrift stores are
left with paint that has been illegally dumped on their peopknged to dispose of it.
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RLVP Sies. Recurring Large Volume Riglsites were previously called L(Maige Volume Us@&ites.
These sitesare those thatkceive pickips on an ogoing basis. RLVP sites sign a contract with PaintCare to
allow them to keep PaintCare collection bins on site and fill them as they adefiongatpaint.

PaintCargrovided the recurring servicéht@e organizations that generated large volumes of paint on a
regular basis in 20IBhe two new RLVP sites that established a contract in 2016 are a univegsfty and a
maintenance facility

The types of customers (business type or household) and citieb fovle@and RLARe provided in the
appendix

Before and after a largelume pickipat a painting company in Fort Collins.

A7. Door-to- Door Programs

PaintCare has contracted with Waste Management Curbside towonsgedm transportation and
processing costs for paint collected through theitaldoor (D2D) servicer feeven municipalities.
Jefferson County's Rooney Road Recycling Center, a Painttaralsaroffers D2D to their residants
the volume isonsolidated back #ite HHWaefcility These programs are not included in any measure of
program convenience, but are considered a supplemental Eeeld@® programs that PaintCare worked
with durin@016are listed in the appendix

A8. Paint Recyclers

Three Coloradbased latex paint resdgrs serve as dragf sites— GreenSheen, Old Western Paint, and
Southern Colorado Services & Recy€liege locations offer households and businesses the opportunity to
drop off up to 200 gallons of paint at a time and help reduce PaintCare’s transpdstétyorotlesting the
paint where it is processed. More information on latex paint ipgpcegscluded ipart Dof this section of

the report.
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B. CONVENIENCE CRITHHA

Prior to the PaintCare program, ColoradsdvaedaHHW and CESQG prowan place-Howeverthe level
of servicevaried greatly across the state in terntag$/hourseligibilitytypes of paint products accepted,
availability tbusinesses, and costs. Some areas did not have any ¥éthitiee addition of more tht0
new sitesthe PaintCare program has increased convenience and oppoidupiéimt recycling
tremendously across the state.

As described in ti&olorado pogramplan, to ensure adequate paint gribpportunities in Colorado,
PaintCare usedtmographic and geographic information modeling to determine the numbiibatidrdis
of dropoff sites based on the following criteria required by the Colorado PaidsSigwaw:

Distribution. At least 90% of Colorado residents must have a permanent site withile eatifuis of their
homes.

Density. An additional permanent site must be provided for every 3§idiMigef an Urbanized Area, as
defined by the United States Census Bureau, and distribmedireathat provides convenient and
reasonably equitable access for residents within each Urbasézedkess the Executive Director of CDPHE
approves otherwise.

Unserved Pqoulations. For the portion of Colorado residents who will not have a permanent cdkection si
within 15miles of th& homes, the program must provide a paint collection evast ahte per year.

PaintCare, with the help of Dewberry, a professional services firpeviisie @& geographic mapping and
analysis, conducted geographical information system (G133} amalgtermine the convenience level of the
program at the end of 2016, and to identify areas in need efaddbtierage. The results of the analysis
are discussed here and shown in the tables that follow.

Distribution. The155 yearound sites aate at the end of 2016 provided 94.6% of Colorado’s residents a drop
off site within 15 miles of their homexceeding the distribution goal of 90%. Factoring in the supplemental
sites, coverage increased to 95.3%.

Density. The analysis shows that sevarahs of the state in need of additional sites to meet the dealsity go
in Urbanized Areas. These areas are Remgr, Colorado Springs, LafayeitesvilleErie, and Pueblo.
Combined, they need an additional 33 sites. PaintCare wileatn#fbrts to recruit sites and hold paint
collection events in these areas in 2017. However, the need for 27 additroagl s#esfficult in the
DenveAuroraurbanized arelaased on the available number of sites and their relativebtamailzesn

the metro aredPaintCare will continue to recruit sites and host events iardeesentil the goals are
reachedlf the goals cannot be reacliedill bediscus®&d in later reports and with CDPHE in detail.

Unseved Pqulations. PaintCare did not hasty events in unserved areas of the state in 2016 but will do so
in 2017 and will also continue its effort to recruigead sites in these areas.
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DISTRIBUTIGNNALYSIS

NUMBER OF POPULATIOM TOTAL

SITE TYPE SITES SERVED POPULATION
YearfRound 155 4,757,647 5,029,196
YearRound and Supplemental 210 4,793,755 5,029,196

DENSITENALYSIS

REQUIRED PARTICIPATING ADDITIONAL
YEARROUND YEAHROUND SITES

URBANIZED AREA POPULATION SITES (1/30K) SITES NEEDED
Boulder 117,861 3 5 0
Colorado Springs 568,088 18 14 4
DenveAurora 2,388,255 79 52 27
Fort Collins 271,752 9 11 0
Grand Junction 130,897 4 6 0
Greeley 118,789 3 4 0
Lafayettd-ouisvilleErie 80,991 2 1 1
Longmont 91,971 3 4 0
Pueblo 141,136 4 3 1

The first two of the following threaps show the locations of PaintCare’srgead and supplemental
dropoff sites and eventsespectivelylhe third map shows thearround and supplemental dwadpsites
and events together. The fourth map showsdhtions otheLVP and RL\&#es, though thesites were
not included in any measure of convenience.
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C. PAINT COLLECTIONPROCEDURES

PaintCare entered into contracts with sponsors or operatorginit aliqpoff sites and/or events. PaintCare
contracts require all droff sites to meet requirements of local, state, and federal law, regulatipoi;iaad

Staff at retajlSWMandRLVHsites received esite, iRperson training and a program procedures manual.
HHW facilities received a visit and overview of program produbts staff were usually well trained on
handling paint products prior to PaintCare. The training anchpragual covered the following topics:

Identifcation of program and nprogram products

Acceptable containers

Whom to accept paint from and how much

Screening procedure for CESQGs and the required log form

Proper storage

Spill response procedures and reporting requirements

Employee training

How to schedule a pigk

Required papeork and record retention schedules
Site personnel are required to visually inspect all incoming coofgdestconsumer paibut not open
them —to confirm that they are acceptable program products and then place them ipribaf spilection
bins provided by the program. Unlabeled and leaking cansaacepietd at retail or other AdiHW sites or

events, but trained staff at HHW facilities and events are allowed to accepaenthpne for
management under the program.

Yeawound dropffandRLVRsitesare visited by PaintCare staff on a regular basis to check on their
operations and provide additional training and consumer outadadalsras neededtaf vist
supplemental sites as schedules allow and needs arise.

D. PAINT TRANSPORTATON AND PROCESSING

D1. Paint Transportation

PaintCare contracted with selaanlerdor transportation services in Coloriad2016- Clean Harbors
Environmental Services, Veolia Environmental Services, Gre8o8tieen Colorado Services & Recycling,
Waste Management Curbside Inc., Waste Management of Coloradegasds@aitation IneaintCare

requires thabaulergransportingitbased paint have the ability and knowledge to respond tdsnciden
involving hazardous materjalsmply with all applicable U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) and state
transportation rules, and be a licensed hazardous wasteThaakeof the companielean Harbors,
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Veolia, and Waste Management Curbsideregistered hazardous waste haubard,they wereontracted
to provide transportation servifmsnsites that received dihsed paint.

A description of eattaulerfollows

Qean Harbors transported bins from retatiesi,LVP and RLVP sitegH\Wevents and facilitieSWM
facilitiesandPaintCare evenssd the oibbased paint collectedtaethree latexyaintrecyclerdo their hub
in Denver for further screening, separation, and consolidaé®rpainwas then transported to
Greeheen Paints in Englewood, CO or Amazon Paint in Fridley, ki$ésargprotased paint was
transported to Clean Harbors in KimbalGMEn America in Hannibal,ai®Cadence Ersimental
Energy in Chanute, KS for processing.

Veoliatransported bins from retail site¥P and RLVP sitel{W facilities and everdad froma PaintCare
eventto their facilityn Henderson, CO for further screening, separaticonantidationLatex painvas
thentransported to GDB Internaéibin Nashville, IL for processiiighased paint was transported to
Rineco Chemical Industries in Haskell, AR for processing.

QGreenStheen transported latex paint frdatexeventsHHWevents and facilitieSWM facilitieand fronLVP
sitestotheir facility in Englewood, CO for processing.

Sauthern Glorado Sevices & Reycling transported latex paint fraaaveral HH\WWvens and one HHW facility
to their facility in Pueblo, CO for processing.

Waste Management Qurbside transported paint froenHHWevent and D2D custom&sgheir facility in

Denver for screening, separation, and consolidadizsolidated latex paint was transported to Deco
Productsn DenverCO for further processing. Unusable latex paint was transported to Conseviggsn Ser
Inc in Bennett, CO &alidification and dispos@ibased paint was transported to Veolia in Henderson, CO
and then to Rineco in Haskell, AR for processing.

Waste Management d Colorado transported rebhff containers of latex paint determined tankeitable for
reuse from Larimer County and latex paint determined to ketbienfui reuse and recycling from Boulder
County to their facility, Conservation Services, Inc. in Bennett, CO fatisolatficdisposal.

Gallegos Sanitation Inc.transpoted roloff containers of latex paint unsuitable for reuse from an HHW customer
to Conservation Services Inc in Commerce City, CO for sohdiinchtisposal.

D2. Latex Paint Processing

The condition in which postconsumer latex paint is received by the progranesi¢heravailable
management options. If containers are not properly sealed tuagg, $atex paint can harden due to
evaporation and may no longer be useable or recyclabldySiinalieex paint freezes a number of times, it
maynot be as suitable for reuse or recycling.

Ultimately, the method of storage and the timing of the decision to bring leftdees dedsff site are
determined by the consumer. The program’s education aadhootessages encourage the timelymetu
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of unwanted postconsumer paint in an effort to reduce the age and improve the ctimelipiaimtofor
endoflife management.

PaintCare manadé&atex paint under the following waste management hierarchy:

Rause. Reuse programs generally screen for paint containers that arens08dwaf and in good condition
and give them away free or sell them to the local community. BouldeCleann#alley Recycling, El Paso
County, Larimer Courputhern Colorado Services & RecyalmigWeld Countgported reusef latex
paintin 2016

Rezycled Pant. The largest portion of latex paint was used to manufacture reoptéed paint by HHW
programs (also referred to as “reprocessing” in this reportyvatelpaint recyclers. El Paso County and
Pitkin County reprocessed pairg016Clean Harbors worked with GreenSheenglewood, Gd

Amazon Pain Fridley, MN/eolia worked with GDB Internatioridashville, IL. Waste Management
Curbside worked with Deco ProducBenver, CGreenSheen, Old Western Paint, and Southern Colorado
Services & Recycling all processed the latex paint collected at theiitga@nddoim some HHW
customersRecycled paint was given away to the local community by HrAWpaogk sold in domestic

and international markets by the private recyclers.

Alternaive Deily Landfill Cover. Latex paint transported by Clean Harbdxmttzon that was not suitable for
painttopaintrecycling was consolidated and deliverdan@zon’$acility in Pryor, OK, andgassed into a
product that wassed as alternative daily landfill cover by American Envirgrerlantiill in Oklahoma.

Disposd. Dry and unusable latex paint sorted out by the transporterscesdqsy and latex paint
determined to be unsuitable for reuse or recpgliBgulder, Larimer, aheldCountywas sent to landfill.

D3. Oil-Based Paint Processing

PaintCare manadeilbased paint under the following waste management hierarchy:

Rause. As stated above, reusegnams generally screen for paint containers that are 50% fullraackin
good condition and give them away free or sell them to the local communifall€jeRecycling and the
Counties of Boulder, El Paso, Larimer, andéyyaitbd reusef oitbased painin 2016

Energy Reovay. Veolia consolidated-biésed paint at their facility in Henderson, CO, then transported it to
RinecoClean Harbors transported part of tHeas#d paint volume they managed to Cadence and part of
thevolume to Green Ameri€adence, Green Ameraad Rinecose the oibased paint as part of their
manufactured wasterived fuels which is used as a secondary fuel source by cement kilns.

Incneration. Clean Harbors utilzéheir facility ilKimballINE to processosttheoitbased paint they
managed.
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Section 2. Paint Sales, Collectio& Y2odpastion Methods

Annual Report Statutory Citation
Colorado Revised Statute, Title 25. Article 17. Part 4. Architectuesl/&aistiStProgram

Sectior25-17-405 (3)(a) On or after March 31 of the second year of a paint stevaaydship pr
implementation, and annually thereafter, one or more participating fnodwstev&rdship organization
contracted by one or more producers, shall submit a report to the eresttotiviesicribing the progress of
the paint stewardship program. The paint stewardship program repoltideuttariollowing information
from the preceding calendar year:

(I) The total volume, in gallons, and type of postcoasthitectural paint collected, with the data broken
down by: (A) Collection site; and (B) Method of waste handling used® ¢alediet! postconsumer
architectural paint, such as reuse, recycling, energy recovery, or walste disposa

(1) The total volume, in gallons, of postconsumer architectural paibokwktbim by the producer or
producers participating in the paint stewardship program.

A. PAINT SALES

Paint salesvere 13,83,17%allonsn 2016

B. PAINT COLLECTIOMND MANAGEMENT

B1l. Collection Volume and Recovery Rate

The program collected an estimated 645,232 gallons and processed 672,029 gaitan6f faiGallons
collected are estimated by PaintCare and are derived from tht$otabunds or containers collected.
Gallos processed are reported to PaintCare by each processor afgsimgdakes place. A variance may
exist between gallons collected and gallons processed since dHagein time between collection and
processing. The lag is creabedausdransporérs buildfull truckoads at their facilities before transporting
the paint tgprocessas. In addition, mcethe paint iseceived bg processoit maysit in inventory until it

can be processed. So, the variance in gallons collected asdgadiesseds dependent upon the length of
time it takes the containers of paint to move through the transportation and proceasomgsope

PaintCare uses processed volume to calculate recovefgathtes of paint processed (or collected)
divided by galloraf paint sold in the same time peridd§ volumef paint processed in 20tpresents a
5% recovery rate using sales from the sam@dinei(13,343,178allons)or a5.7% recovery rate using
the estimated 2010 sales (11,700,000 gallons), as discussed in the program plan.

Collection volumacreased in 2016, andi®jectedo increase for the next few years untiptbgram
matures toan anticipated 7% recovery ratee addition ahore dropff sitesand increasingublic
awarenessvill driveghe increase
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[Corrections were made to this report in January 2018. Tteé jmirt incorrectly included an additional
5,235 gallons of latex paint reported as managed by incineration iD¢lee20db reporting period. This
resulted from an adnsivative error on the part of one of the program’s haulers. [Enanitzally recorded
the processed volume in the wrong category of latex paint ratheibdsedgiiaint. The hauler recognized
the mistake prior to reporting the data to PaintCare and moved the volumebts#tepaint category, but
inadvertently left the volume in the latex paint category.&hwellthe same volume was counted twice in
the 2015 report (as both latex paint adshsigd paint) and the error was carried foliwtarthis report.

Revisions to the 2015 data in this report include reducing the volume of latex paint Hodstotal ga
processed by 5,235 gallons, removing incineration as a latex paint manageattranenaking small
adjustments to the recovery rate cost per gallon calculations.]

GALLONSOLMANDPROCESSED

JULDEC 2015 JANDEC 2016
6 MONTHS 12 MONTHS

Gallons Sold 6,799,639 13,343,179
Gallons Processed 225,046 672,029
Recovery Rate 3.3% 5.0%

B2. Latex vs. OilBased Paint

Of the672,02%allons of paint processedil§ 75% 505,154allons) was latex paint &2 (66,875
gallons)vas obased paint.
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B3. Paint Management Methods

The following tables show the paint management methodduanesvprocessed.

SUMMARDRPAINTMANAGEMENT

JUL-DEC 2015 JUL-DEC 2015 JANDEC 2016

LATEX PAINT DISPOGSNI GALLONS
Reuse 21,062
Recycled Paint 127,341

Alternative Daily Landfill Cove -
Disposal 54,182
Total 202,584

OI-BASED PAINT DCSHTION

Reuse 3,438
Energy Recovery 19,024
Incineration -

Total 22,462

%

10
63

27

100

15
85

100

GALLONS
24,615

353,768
28,162
98,609

505,154

6,457

36,399

124,019
166,875
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B4. Collection by Program Type

The following pie chart shows the breakdown of collection volume by program type

HHW Facilities
and Events 33%

Retailers 43%

Door-to-Door 1% /

Latex Events 2%
SWM Facilities 3%
PaintCare Events 4%

Paint Recyclers 10%
LVP 4%

B5. Methodology for Determining Volumes

For haulers and processors, one of two methods were applieela(ydl volume of paint processed was
provided, no conversions were applied and the volume data wed aggato PaintCare. (2) Gross pounds
received were converted to net galloreepeed. The weight of the shipping container was subtracted from
gross pounds received to yield an estimated weight of paiohamcher packaging. Next an estimated
weight of consumer packaging was subtracted to yield the weight of paint. Thepawigivasfthen
converted to gallons of paint using a factor of 10 pounds per gallon.

For HHW programs that reprocessed latex paint, data provide€Caréaias the volume of paint
reprocessed and given out to the publice paint was not given avira016, even if reprocessed during
2016, it was not counted in this report

For reuse prograoperated by HH@ogramsand arecycling center, container siaes trackednd
reported to PaintCare and thenverted to gallons usiing§% of the containdre

C. CONTAINER RECYCNIG

Metaland plastic paint containers are repurposed and recycleVamgossibl@he program recycled an
estimated236tons of paint containeirs 2016
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Section 3. Independent Audit and Financial Summary

Annual Report Statutory Citation
Colorado Revised Statute, Title 25. Article 17. Part 4. Architectuest/&aistiStProgram

Section 287405 (3)(a) On or after March 31 of the second year of a paint stevaayidship pr
implementation, and annually thereafterpr more participating producers, or a stewardship organization
contracted by one or more producers, shall submit a report to the @sexxtotivkesicribing the progress of
the paint stewardship program. The paint stewardship program repoltideutstariollowing information
from the preceding calendar year:

(V1) A copy of an independent third party's report auditing thewzaitglsp program. The audit must
include a detailed list of the program's costs and revenues.

A. INDEPENDENT FINARIALAUDIT

An independent financial audit of the national PaintCare progremnavected by Rogers & Company PLLC.
This independent CPA firm conducted the audit in accordhraugditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standardsiredhat the firm plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are fine¢eofl misstatements. The audit process
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingtimtsaamd disclosures in the financial
statements. The audit also includes assessing the accountigeiused and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial stateseiation. In Rogers & Company’s
opinion, the financial statents of PaintCare present fairly, in all material respects, the finaticrabposi

of December 31, 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the geakrithen en
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted intdueStates. Please s appendix for the
independent financial audit of the PaintCare program.

B. FINANCIAL SUMMARYAND DISCUSSION

B1l. Expense Categories

Revenue is derived from fees on new paint sales. Expense catedwi€oforado program aliscussed
below.

Pant Processing. Paint processing costs are the largest budget item in all PaintCare programs. Pa
processings invoiced per galldar reprocessing, per gallompercontainefor reuse, per gross pound for
all other disposition nietds, excluding the roff bins which are invoiced either by yard or by{fee®0
bin.

Paint Trangportation. Paint transportation costs are another significant cost in alePaipt@rams. Paint
Transportation is invoiced per cubic yard baggl6s drum, rebff or per load.
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Collection Supplies and Qupport. Collection support and suppliedudegpaint collection bins (single use and
reusable), spill kits, training materials, and miscellaneolisssigoroff sites to maintain safe and
clean operations.

Communicaions. Communications costs inclgdelvertising and promotional materials to increase
awareness of the program and use of theadfajtes.

Pasonnel, Piofessional Fees, and Gther. Personnel, professional fees, and othexdieslthe cost of one full
time employee, legal costs for developing and negotiating contracts, travalppffes, and other
logistical and professional support.

State AdministrativeFees. PaintCare paystate administrative fees in the amount to $120,000 annually to the
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment.

Corporate Activity. Corporate costs are allocated among all PaintCare statesréseid relative
population. As of Decembér 2016, Colorado’s corporate allocation (shtre tiftal corporate expenses)
was 8.6%.

Allocation of corporate activity was referred to as AdministrativénGoe Coloradwogramplan.
Corporate activities are those that benefit or apply to all PaintCare stataslubieebut are not limited to
corporate staffing (e.g., Executive Director, communications, legal, and accountiatastafflagement
systems, auditing fees, legal fees and general communications.

B2. Financial Summary

The following table sheyrogram revenue and expenses dthimgjrst reporting period of July
December 201&nd the second reporting period (204 @jscussion of their differences follows the table.
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PROGRARICTIVITIES

YEAR 1 YEAR 2
REVENUE JUL-DEC 2015 2016
Larger than half pint to smaller than 1 gall $ 324,136 $ 647,751
1 gallon 1,833,422 3,506,838
Larger than 1 gallon up to 5 gallons 1,318,541 2,623,920
Total revenue 3,476,098 6,778,509
EXPENSES
Paint processing 1,213,416 2,849,217
Paint transportation 302,085 666,803
Collection suppliend support 321,361 498,368
Communications 171,952 644,074
Personnel, professional fees, and other 73,337 173,154
State administrative fees - 240,000
Allocation of corporate activity 184,823 351,687
Total expenses 2,266,974 5,423,303
Allocatiorof investment activity 17,964 32,066
Change in net assets (revenue less exper 1,227,088 1,387,272
Net assets, beginning of reporting period (499,664) 727,424
Net assets, end of reporting period $ 727,424 $2,114,696

Revenue generati#d2016vasabout double the revenue of the first six months of the program. The
small variation is likely due to seasonality.

Paint transportation and processing cogise than doubleshowing a full year of costs, while still
increasig as the program increases collection volumes

Comnunicationgosts were significantly higher in 20d6ause advertising was initidipimized to
allow sites and haulers to adjust to the produaimg the beginning
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The state administrative fe&i20,000 per year, however the anpaidin 2016vas $240,000
because PaintCare received the state’s invoice after thafimadifor the 2015 report took place.
Therefore, this expense was not captured in thdik@iéials

C. RESERVE POLICY

Re®rves (or net assets) are the accumulatedususpthe program.

PaintCare has a Reserves Policy to define and quantify the reseshietdtegarogram. The policy defines
the reserves as net assets and establishes a minimum threshold of h&¥edfpmmses (i.e., at least two
months of total operating expenses); a target of 50% (i.e., at least six montbpefidtital expenses),

and the maximum shall be 75% (i.e., nine months of total operating expensesniilsiteddralance

allows Paintére programs to continue to operate in times of either higher than expected paint collectio
(higher costs)r lower than expected retail paint sébegefrevenue)- or a combination of the two.
Reserves or net assets represent the accumulated sufjiisitithe program.

At the end d2016 the Colorado program had built a surplus, as revenue erepedsds. The
accumulated surplus w@2,114,696r reserves of 39%

PaintCare expects increased collection volumes and costs for eaveeyogram awareness and
participation grows. PaintCare anticipates reaching a program matuidtysigitbnt collection volumes in
the fourth or fifth year of the program, as several years are needed tahedfudgpepulation of the state
about the mrgram.

D. EVALUATION OF THE ROGRAM’'S FUNDING MBEANISM
Theprogram utilizes the following assessment, called the Paiet; aer fcontainer size.
PAINTCAREEESTRUCTURE
CONTAINER SIZE FEE

Half pint or smaller $0.00
Larger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon $0.35
1 gallon $0.75

Larger than 1 gallon up to 5 gallons $1.60

The funding mechanism, including the fee structure and gysesmive sales reports and payments from
manufacturergperformed welh 2016
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E.

FIVEYEARPROJECTIONS

Using observations from the Oregon progitiua longest running PaintCare progfavhich has continued
to increase its volume into its seventh year, PaintCare believatettatcvolume in Colorado will

continue to increase for a number of yeaessfhitus of theurplusand its use is reviewed below using a
fiveyear projection of expected revenues and expenses, basedltmwihg fissumptions:

Gallons collected
Gallons sold
Recovery rate

Annual increase in volume

Revenue

Expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of ye
Netassets, end of year

Reserve percentage

2016
672,029

13,343,179

5.0%

6,810,575

5,423,303

1,387,272

727,424

2,114,696
39%

FIVEYEARPROJECTION

2017
739,232

13,300,000
5.6%
10.0%

6,800,000
5,835,827

964,173

2,114,696

3,078,869
53%

Progranrevenudgallonssold)remainghesameas 2016

Collectiorvolumewillrampupto a 7.5% recexyrate

2018
813,155

13,300,000
6.1%
10.0%

6,800,000
6,277,409

522,591

3,078,869

3,601,459
57%

2019
894,471

13,300,000
6.7%
10.0%

6,800,000
6,763,150

36,850

3,601,459

3,638,309
54%
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Costpergallonof paintcollectiontransportatiomndprocessingvill stayat the2016rate

2020
939,194

13,300,000
7.1%
5.0%

6,800,000
7,030,308

(230,308)

3,638,309

3,410,528
48%

2021
986,154

13,300,000
7.4%
5.0%

6,800,000
7,310,823

(510,823)

3,408,001

2,897,178
40%



E. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY AD FORMATION OF LIMIED LIABILITY COMPANES

Beginning in December 2014, PaintCare invested a portion of its accumulated surplualip@rtfiolznci
PaintCare maintained its investments for all programs in a gitigli® pGlaim of ownership in the
investment portfolio was shared by allnarag and allocated among the programs based on relative net
asset balances. Programs that had positive net asset balances im@® itla assets invested in the
portfolio; programs with negative net asset balances carried a liagtgiigntang an aroat due to the
portfolio.

In 2015, to better separate each state program in terms of liability andifidapeiaflence, PaintCare
began implementing a plan to transition operations for each program from RaintGarevholgwned
subsidiary company dedicated to managing that particular proglamudy 2016, PaintCare had formed
solemember limited liability companies in Connecticut, Onedgdth@de Island and established individual
bank accounts for each of those new companies. At thihésgeprograms moved their net asset
balances, including gains earned from the investment panttotiopse individual bank accounts and ended
their programs’ participation in an investment portfolio. The remaining progrhitis RaimtCare has not
yet established dedicated companies continue as beforeafegité@s to transition the remaining
jurisdictions to solmember limited liability companies over the course of theyogears.
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Section 4. Outreach

Annual Report Statutory Citation
Colorado Revised Statute, Title 25. Article 17. Part 4. Architectusst&alshi§tProgram

Section 287405 (3)(a) On or after March 31 of the second year of a paint stevaayidship pr
implementation, and annually thereafter, one or more {iegtigipducers, or a stewardship organization
contracted by one or more producers, shall submit a report to the eresttotivkesicribing the progress of
the paint stewardship program. The paint stewardship program repoltideutstariollowing armation
from the preceding calendar year:

(IV) For the education and outreach program implemented in complsect®wi2d 7-404 (2)(i): (A)
Samples of any materials distributed; and (B) A description of the methodolddiieisesu#n of the
evaluation conducted pursuant to sectidr7-284 (2)(i)(I1). The results must include the percentage of
consumers, painting contractors, and retailers made aware of the ways togedercsitreof
postconsumer architectural paint, available opportunities for reuse of pestamistentural paint, and
collection options for postconsumer architectural paint recycling.

A.  OUTREACH ACTIVIHS

Al. Introduction

PaintCare’programplan for theColoradg@rogram includes a variety of outreach activities targeted to
retailers, painting contractors, municipal agencies, and the general public through diranticonta
advertising. Initial outreach prior to the start of the program and in the fosugedron recruiting of drop
off sites

Outreach effts in2016focused on encouraging the public to recycle their unwantedgaictieded
messages related to source reduction and reuse.

Outreach was conducted using a variety of media, including@wspagers), television, outd@og.(
billboard¥ radio, fulfillment (distribution of brochures and othebgsad materials), digital, and social
media.

The main objective of outreagdsto drive the public to PaintCare’s website to find -affisite using
PaintCare’s site locator search tool. The redativentsof spending dedicated to outreach activities in 2016
are summarized in the following pie chart:
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Other 4%

Fulfillment 2%
TV 13%
. Digital/Social
Print 11% e
48%
Radio 22

A2. Press Releases

PaintCare, through its marketing,fissueda number of press releases to local newspapers when new sites
joined the program and were interested in press coverage. asss aid other efforts to contact the
media led to 11 stories mentioning PaintCare as follows:

DATE MEDIA DESCRIPTION

Winter Magazine 5280 Home Magazine
1/14 Newspaper Pikes Peak Bulletin

2/4 TVWebsite Channel 18Gunnison)

2/16 Newspaper Gunnison County Times
4/15 Newsletter Triangle, T®County Health Dapment
4/15 Online La Junta Tribune

5/3 Online Greeley Tribune

5/12 Online Pueblo Chieftain

6/23 Online The Business Times

7126 Website Leadville Today

7127 Newspaper Leadville Herald Democrat
8/16 Magazine Welcome Home

10/11 Online Geeblhaus.com

10/20 Online &lewspaper  Denver Business Journal
10/28 Newspaper Denver Business Journal
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A3. Print Materials for Consumers

During2016 PaintCare fulfilletBrequests for additional materials, and even more materaeliesred
to sites by th€oloradananager, who dropped off materials in person during sitePaisit€are distributed
19,259 brochures, mini cards and fact sheets duripgpth®f these 13,515 were part of a statewide
mailingin Decembeép retailers along withcaver letter to remind them thetiailers are required by the
Colorado paint stewardship law to provide-piesate materials to consumers

PaintCare also provides a counter mat to retailers to use in tHegzaintent to reference when

customers had questions. Therteumat was popular with retailers and more likely than the poster to be
seen by customers while they wait for their paint to be mix@datEhnials shown below are included in the
appendix and available on PaintCare’s website.
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Brochure, Miiard, Pogram Poster, Counter Mat, Painting Contractor Fact Sheet, LVP Fact Sheet

A4. Fact Sheets for Stakeholders

The following fact sheets were distributed in the months before the start of the pcbhgrarstid used.

Minor updates are made throughout the ¥&irrent versions are included in the appendix and available on
PaintCare’s website.

How Does th€oloraddPaint Stewardship Program Affect Paint Retailers?
How to Become a Retail D@fpSite

About PaintCare Fees

Information for HHW Programs

Informaion for Solid Waste Transfer Stations, Recycling Facilities dild Land

A new fact sheet was create@016 to explain PaintCare’s effort to encourage reuse programs, including an
increase in reuse compensation.

Reuse ProgramsCompensation and Reporting
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A5. Website

Nearly all PaintCare advertising and outreach efforts direct the public t@Bairsre for more
information and to find a local PaintCare site. The moshiffegisted part of the webdgdhe PaintCare
site locator tool on the page titled BDéfp_ocations. PaintCare’s website and site locator are updated
throughout the year.

The website is easy to navigate and features topics on buying the right amount of gaiahdstetse

tips, and recycling. It has special pages for manufacturers and a general secti@r§pexrglains what
products are covered by the program, and Gakeadpage with tabs for different audiences (Everyone,
Contractors, Retailers, Waste Facilities, and Oficial Docs). Web trasid isigneificantiy Aprilvhen
morestatewideadvertising began.
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12,000
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8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
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A6. Translations

PaintCare translates consumer brochures and fact sheets into language of knowgshinithgrstate,
especially those in the girig business, and upon requests from paint retailers or othieolsiedse
PaintCare translated Colorado’s program brochure to Spanish.

Two widehused fact sheets are not progsgpecific, and the same version is used in all programs. The fact
sheet for the LVP service is available in Spanish. The fact sheet for painting ceravadtirkeiin 11
languages other than English due to requests from other PaintCare programs.

A7. Print Advertising

Ral Plum andNewspapers. Red Plunis the name of publication that a dineatl circulamade up of
advertisements and coupons that can be targeted to addressesgeegh® of zip codes. In 2016
PaintCare used Red Plum circulars wherever it was p(Rsibelum is not offered in soraral areas and

in one situation, the group of zip codes would want to usesisdomeaddresses in New Mexico where
PaintCare does not wish to advertidevyspaper ads were used where Red Plum service was not.available
Examples of print ads are shdvelowPaintCaréegan toun a full set of print advertisements throughout
the stateat the end dflarch B16.PaintCare identified either a Red Plum edition or a local neimsgiaper
areas of the state where there were PaintCareftisies.
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Alldropoff sites were asked if they wished to be listed autleetisementsThose that wished to be listed

were includeth the advertisemen(with the site’same, addresgity and phone numbei thosecases

whee no sites wished to be listady@eraladvertisement was run in the area to promote the program, and it
referred readers to PaintCare’s website to find-affitopation

PAINT RECYCLING  (Goiico PAINT RECYCLING (concore

MADE €44l MADE easl

Do you know where to recycle your paint?

There are more than 140 PaintCare sites in Colorado where households

and businesses can recycle unwanted paint, stain and varnish for free Do you know where to
recycle leftover paint?

all year-round, including these sites in Colorado Springs:
Paint manufacturers set up PaintCare, a nonprofit

CIRCLE CITY PAINT
1775 H Circle Dieive 3141 W Cokoradn Avenue arganization to run Colorada's paint stewardship :
{713 s00-3702 (i18) 208-6341 program. We're making It easier to recycle unwanted
paint throughout Coloradeo. 1
CIAMOND VOGEL ELPASD COUNTY HHW fr
e “";T':-&?M'“ ‘;;:;2'-“'1"‘:; Funding comes from a fee on the sale of new paint. %.E -
TR [Hom The fee Is 35 cents for pints and quarts, 75 cents k

Mow « Fri T am+ 5 pm
2nd Sat of the Month @ am - 1 pm
Sutmesie: Thur 7am-Som vty s for 1 gallon cans and $1.60 for 5 gallon buckets.

PaintCare sites accept all brands of old paint, and
there Is no charge for dropping off leftover paint,

TO FIND OTHER DROP-OFF LOCATIONS:
y no matter how ald It is.

(855) 7T24-6609

To learn more or find a PaintCare drop-off site in
All Paini your area, give us a call or visit us online.
Ploase
fype s
merasols (sproy po

{same take mare)
k if they can accept the
Sites dho mor eevepr:

rlsking,unisbeled and empry conainer www.paintcare.org - (855) 724-6809

Exampls of Red Plum and Newspaper Adveritisements

Magazines. In the fall, &ntCare started running an ad Welcome Home Magazine, a publication geared to
new home buyeran ideal target audience that often has leftoverpeaithier paint that was left behind by
the previous owners or from fixing up their homes when they.rAovexiample of the ad iogim here:

-

i‘ -I'nr uul:: i

i New Homes

{ _Real Esiate
AL

Leftoven paint taking up too much ipace?

n making your house a
me leftover paint to recycle.

Keep whalt you need, and recycle the rest.

FIND A DROP-OFF LOCATION NEAR YOU
www.paintcare.org * (855) PAINT09
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A8. Radio

Public Radio. JulyNovembePaintCarean sponsorships on public matfiroughout Colorado usfofowing
messagesStation Name> is brought tobydRaintCare. With ovédlearound drojff locations
throughout the state, R&lare makes it easy for households and businesses in Colorado toirecycle the
leftover paint. PaintCar&eep what you need and recycle the rest. Learn more at PaintCare dot org.

Commercial Radio. ApritJune PaintCaran the following spoh ten musistations (rock, lightck, and

country) coveringiost parts of the stat&€heradio spot using the following scaiptdwas produced early in

the year for the campaid¢myour garage full of old paint that you'll never use? | know mine is. Avqcado Green
Hot Pink, Antiqgue White? (That is a nice shade of white Yloouighow, it's easy to recycle your paint all over
Colorado. Keep what you need and recycle tRenckatdrop off site near you at paintcare.org.

A9. Television

In April and May Paint€aan television commercials on 11 cgidenelsThe “Goldilocks” commercial
showed a couple that first had too little paint, then they had too much, and then thesuteskents and
asked for help at their paint store, finally getting it “just right

Still frames frorfiGoldilock’s

In June 2016 PaintCare completed production on a new video eshdistagtit for online video. The “Touch
Ups” video shows a woman whose child had drawn on the wall. Wbes tshgegj some of the paint she
hadbeen saving for touchups, she sees that she has much more leftover paint than sieel wodld ne
recycles the rest.

Still Fames fronfTouch Up” Video

The Goldilocks and Touch Ups video commercials are also nbed adwertising. Both can be viewed
from www.paintcare.orgédia

PaintCare also sponsored the production of a segniNettdiomea PBS program that will be offered for
broadcast to public TV stations in Colorado in 2017.
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A10. Online and Digital Advertising

PaintCare dedicated about 40% of its media budget to onlineragine2(4i6 Two versions of each

television commercial (15 and 30 seconds) mentioned abousedeadpreroll videos (those that a user
sees when they are on a website before thgyrgeeed) or imbedded into online advertising. Online banner
ads in a variety of standard dimensions were used in all maokegisatt the year. A few examples are
shown belowPandora radio is categorized and budgetdijigal advertising (rather theadio) because it
includes a combination of audio commercials and digital displagtatow on a listener’s device both
during the audio commercial and at other times.

RECICLAJE -?'g‘
DE PINTURA &

'3 600D
BUSINESS

paintcarg 1
) W& J

All. Face-to-Face

Examples of &Digital Display Ads used inG201

PaintCare’€oloradgrogrammanagemwas active with the following faodace activities in 2016

EVENT LOCATION DESCRIPTION

Sherwin Williams District Training Littleton District Wide Retailer Training Event
Sherwin Williams Distriataining Colorado Springs District Wide Retailer Training Event
PaintCare Collection and Outreach Ev Thornton Collection and Outreach Event
CAFR Sumnfitr Recycling Grand Junction Recycling Industry Event

PaintCare Collection and Outreach Ev Dener Collection and Outreach Event
CAFR Annual Meeting Golden Recycling Industry Event

PaintCare Collection and Outreach Ev Brighton Collection and Outreach Event
Rocky Mountain NAHMMA Conferenci Boulder Hazardous WastedustryEvent
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Al12. Outdoor Advertising

Local government agencie®anveand Thorntorach offered space on their truick®016 for general
messaging aboaintCareBelow is the sign used on trucks in Denver:

The City of Thornton and Adams County offere€C&ai space on their trucks to advertise PaintCare drop
off events held in Thornton in April and at Adams CountaReayik in Octobdrhe City of Thornton also

provided space for similar posters to be placed in bus shelterg\miltbeenBelows the truck sign for
the Adams County event.

Al13. Realtors

In 2016 PaintCare compiled a list of 400 realtors and send them a packet of posteardsistosmers
The packet included a cover letter, program brocmuagsstcards aimed at home bsiygerd sellers
explaining how tfind a PaintCare droff site. An illustration of the realtor packet is shown here:

Do you want the old paint
the sellers left behind?

. But: we dof Probably not. Gt we do/

Do the people buying your
house want your old paint?
P "

Paint@reColorad®016Annual Repoiit Page41



Al4. Store Right Tips

PaintCare developed a series of video tips about storing paty prapcrease recyclability. The videos
are used in social media posts and on PaintCare’s website atvwarepatig/storeright.

Storage Tips Vided®oke Holes in the Rim, Create a Tape Spout, Use a Malléhtt &lusamer)

Al5. Signage

PaintCare developed a number of sigrisdpoff sites to help them let the public know about the program,
screen program products, and address concerns they haveegfabduithping. Drayff sites may order

the following signs: Program Products Sign (English/Spanish), Program Parm@bBigtioC (program
partner with simplified products list), No Dumping, and Please Wait for &ds@stgarcversions of these
signs are included in the appendix can be found online at weavepaiglsigns.

B. AWARENESS SURVEY

Cengal Population. PaintCare conducted a baseline “Paint Usage and DisposairSoolesédo in

December 2014 using Survey Monkey, an online survey insthersemiey is repeated each December
andused to evaluate changes over time in the lquablafawarenessythe public about paint recycling
options PaintCare is especially interested in the questions relatednoitiowaint people store in their
homes and whether they know where to recycle unwantel paimmary of questions and answers for the
last thee rounds of surveys is included in the app&adimare some highlights of the trends in theeth
surveys conducted 202016.

Fewer people said that they ha@@§allons of leftover paint in their homes, and more people said
they had &b gallons.
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When asked what thiegddonewith leftover paint, fewer people said that they dried out paint to put it
in the trash, took paint to an HHW program, or gave it away; More people sai@fitoeetqoakrit to
a paint store.

When asked what theguld dowith leftover paint in the future, more people said that they would put
liquid paint in the in the trash (unexpected result), slightly fewer people said they dry ihdhéto put i
trash, many more (ten times more when compared to 2014) sambttitake/it to a paint store,

fewer would took paint to an HHW program,waaregive it away.

The percentage of people who said they know that paint can be recycledfioene28% to 46%.

The number who said that they know where to take leftover paint for recyclingaimoBfeésdin

2014 to 25% in 2015, then increased to 70% by the end of 2016. This may be attributed to the fact that
PaintCare had not done very much outreach until the start of 2016, and then conducted statewide
advertising throughottd year.

Contractor Suvey. PaintCareised Survey Monkeyctinducta survey of painting contractors in 20hé.

survey was taken by 53 respondents, which PaintCare aclewiwladgnall sample, so PaintCare will plan
another survey in 2017 and aimlitain a larger sample size. Even with this small sample size, wieecan ma
a few interesting observatio8eme guestions were the same as the general awareness survey mentioned
about and others were geared to contracdasammary of questions and ansvigincluded in the

appendix

Painting contractors have more leftover paint than the general population andiereer thas they
have no leftover paint. this was expected. About 10% said they have more than 50 gallons

More than 90% of painting contractors take measurements before buying paint. Of those,r15% ask the
paint store for help estimating how much paint is needed.

More than 40% of contractors said that some of their paint was from custorasked/them to
take away their old paint. Wet it distinguish between paint leftover from the contractor’s recent job
or paint from previous job, but will plan to do so in future surveys.

Whereas about the same percentage of respondents from each survey 13% codtlaiers an
general public, weikd to have used an HHW facility, contractors were twice as likeb/tised a
paint store to dispose of their paint than the general public 13% vs 6.5%. This was expected.

No painting contractors indicated that they had ever used a commercialshazatd company to
pick up paint.

Contractors were more like to give paint away or pour it down the draiedcantipa general public.

When asked what they would do with unwanted paint in the Ritrpaseg number said they would
dispose of in the trash (whether dry or not) although fewer said they would Abpittd@% said

Paint@reColoradd®016Annual Report Page43



they would pour it down the drain (same percentage who saidl theyrbe it down the drain in the
past).This was unexpected.

Many more contractors (79%) were rvege that paint can be recycled, compared to the general
public (45%).

Reailer Suvey. PaintCare did not conduct a retailer survey this year.

C. RECOMMENDATIONS

PaintCare’s outreach in 2017 will be very similar to the outreach used in 2046 .dwvid#l range of print,
radio, digital, and social media strategies.

PaintCare will increase its effort to reach out to the press using outreach firm &sgainepage.

PaintCare will conduct an direct mail campaign to property maimaidgarsostheone we conducted for
realtors in 2016. Property managers are second largesbigposmesses with large volumes of leftover
paint and an excellent audience for PaintCare.

PaintCare will continue to offer its joint outreach program to local goveiraharésnow having their
paint transportation and processing costs paid for by PaintCare. This willtheieragssaging and
outreach for recycling and solid waste programs. No programs took advdntag#esfin 2016, (one is
schedule for 2017), so PaintCare will make a bigger effort in 2017 to makaware af the joint projects
fact sheet and process.

In 2017 we will conduct a survey or a focus group with retailers to gather fesadilaekfabout the
program and POS materials.
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Rogers & Company PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

8300 Boone Boulevard
Suite 600
Vienna, Virginia 22182

703.893.0300 voice
703.893.4070 facsimile
www.rogersplic.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
PaintCare Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financialestants of PaintCare Inc. (“PaintCare”), which
comprise the statement of financial positioroa®ecember 31, 2016, the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the twelve monthipe then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibilitior the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparationfaingresentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting priptas generally accepted in the WnitStates of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maimrieaaof internal combl relevant to the
preparation and fair presentationfimfancial statements that aredrfrom material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinion on these financial statents based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditstgndards generallyceepted in the United
States of America. Those standards reqtivat we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performingprocedures to obtain audévidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. eTprocedures selectedepend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessmasft the risks of materiamisstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or errdn making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevantthe entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedurasatre appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expresgi an opinion on the effectivenesstbe entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. &mit also includes euvadting the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonabiné significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the ovpraentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we haveaioled is sufficient andpgropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of PaintZe as of December 31, 2016, anddhanges in its net assets and

its cash flows for the twelve month period theded in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the [ted States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fogran opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The supplementary information wdéd on page 13 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part effthancial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was deriyeain and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to preparenbedial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applietheaudit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing aedonciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used &pgme the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United Stdtésnerica. In our opiion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in teda to the financial statements as a whole.

Vienna, Virginia
March 29, 2017



PaintCare Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2016

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Investments
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Total assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to affiliate

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestrictal

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

$ 11,352,676
4,629,251
32,374,147
84,847

48,440,921
296,457

$ 48,737,378

$ 5,380,494
707,370

6,087,864

42,649,514

42,649,514

$ 48,737,378




PaintCare Inc.

Statement of Activities
For the Twelve Month Period Ended December 31, 2016

Operating Revenue and Support

Paint recovery fees $ 59,330,378
Other income 114,137
Total operating revenue and support 59,444,515
Expenses
Program and delivery services:
Oregon 4,843,757
California 30,271,474
Connecticut 2,833,700
Rhode Islad 681,349
Minnesota 5,625,235
Vermont 718,878
Maine 1,180,482
Colorado 5,071,615
District of Columbia 148,652
Total program and delivery services 51,375,142
General and administrative 4,136,264
Total expenses 55,511,406
Change in Net Assets from Operations 3,933,109
Non-Operating Activities
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (80,333)
Interest and dividend income 810,900
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 439,166
Change in Net Assets 5,102,842
Net Assetsbeginning of perid 37,546,672
Net Assetsend of period $ 42,649,514

See accompanying notes. 4



PaintCare Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Twelve Month Period Ended December 31, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 5,102,842
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 86,892
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (439,166)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 80,333
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts receivable (58,582)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in:
Accounts receivable 1,471,252
Prepaid expenses 30,976
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,439,641)
Due to affiliate 248,061
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,082,967
Cash Flows from Investirg Activities
Purchases of investments (810,900)
Proceeds from sale of investments 118,711
Purchases of property and equipment (5,536)
Net cash used in investing activities (697,725)
Net Increase in Cash 3,385,242
Cash, beginning of perid 7,967,434
Cash,erd of penod $ 11,352,676

See accompanying notes. 5



PaintCare Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

Nature of Operations

PaintCare Inc. (“PaintCare”), a not-for-fito501(c)(3) organization, was created in
October 2009 by the American Coatings Asation (ACA), who, working with state
and local government stakeholders, passedirdteever paint product stewardship law in
the United States in the state of Oregori2009 with implement&gn of the Oregon
Program beginning July 1, 2010Similar legislation has subguently been passed in
other jurisdictions. The legislation pilotan industry-led, end-of-life management
program for post-consumer paint, which R@ere operates. The PaintCare Board is
made up of architectural paimanufacturers and participation in PaintCare is not limited
to ACA members, but open &l architectural painmanufacturers. There are no dues or
registration fees associated with Paing&CarDuring 2015, PaintCare organized single-
member limited liability companies (LDCfor the Oregon, Connecticut, and Rhode
Island programs in an effort to shield thesets of each state program from liability
stemming from acts and obligationsather PaintCare state programs.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

PaintCare’s financial statements are pred on the accrual basis of accounting.
Unrestricted net assets represent fundsaranot subject to donomposed stipulations
and are available for support of PaintCareperations. At December 31, 2016, all net
assets were unrestricted.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements @onformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United StatesAsherica requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect thewsnts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual resudtauld differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recordatdnet realizablealue and represent amounts due from
post-consumer paint recoveryels. PaintCare provides an allowance for bad debts using
the allowance method, which is based on management’s judgment considering historical
information. Accounts are individually anaBd for collectabilityand will be reserved
based on individual evaluation and specificemstances. When all collection efforts
have been exhausted, the @mats are written-off against the related allowance. At
December 31, 2016, an allowance of $13,122 was recognized.



PaintCare Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments

Investments are stated at famlue, based on quoted marlmices. All realized and
unrealized gains and losses are includetiénaccompanying statemt of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment with a projected uskfelranging from three to ten years and in
excess of $1,000 are capitalizettlaecorded at cost. Degmiation and amortization are
computed using the straight-line method over ¢stimated useful lives of the individual
assets.

Revenue Recognition

PaintCare recognizes revenue from post-cores paint recovery fees at the time
architectural paint product is sold by a mewturer participant of the paint product
stewardship program. Manufacturer par@eifs in the program pay the PaintCare
recovery fee to PaintCare based on #meount of program products they sell on a
monthly basis.

Program participants report their monthigit sales of painthrough a secure, HTTPS
online system using their unique user ID gadsword. The participant must pay a paint
recovery fee per unit sold, based on contasiee, according to the established fee
schedule for each state program. As the Pam&@covery fee is added to the wholesale
price of paint and passed through uniformly to the retail purchase price of paint—so that
the manufacturer, distributor, and/or retaiemade whole—in some cases, distributors

or retailers have elected tmdertake the obligation of the manufacturer for these fees.
Thus, PaintCare has allowed remitter agreements in the program, whereby a distributor or
retailer reports and remits directly to PaintCare on behalf of a participant manufacturer’'s
brand or brands. Reports and paymengsdare by the end of the month following the
reporting period.

Revenue from all other sourcssrecognized when earned.



PaintCare Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Communications Costs

PaintCare holds communication-related cacts for advertising, marketing, and
consumer awareness. Communications casdscharged to operations when incurred.
Communications expenses totaled $6,275,502 the twelve month period ended
December 31, 2016.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various program and supporting itesivhave been
summarized on a functional basis in the accompanying financial statements.
Accordingly, certain costs have beallocated among th@rograms and supporting
services benefited. Prograi® categorized by the statelsere services are conducted.

Measure of Operations

PaintCare includes in its measure of operatialhgevenues and expenses that are an
integral part of its programs and supportiagtivities, and excldes realized and
unrealized gains and losses iomestments, interest andvaiends, and loss on disposal
of property and equipment.

Subseqguent Events

In preparing these financial statements, ®zane has evaluated events and transactions
for potential recognition or disclosuterough March 29, 2017, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject PaintCare to significant concentrations of
credit risk consist of cash and investnsent PaintCare maintains cash deposit and
transaction accounts, along with investments, with various financial institutions and these
values, from time to time, may exceed insurable limits under the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and Securitiesestor Protection Corporation (SIPC).
PaintCare has not experienced any credit losea$s cash and investments to date as it
relates to FDIC and SIPC insurance limitdManagement periodically assesses the
financial condition of these financial institutions and believes that the risk of any credit
loss is minimal.



PaintCare Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

AccountsReceivable

Accounts receivable related to the followipgpgrams were due as follows at December
31, 2016:

California $ 2,942,514
Colorado 472,301
Minnesota 373,845
Oregon 265,254
Connecticut 221,528
Maine 196,584
Rhode Islad 57,640
District of Columbia 52,808
Vermont 59,899
Total accounts receivable 4,642,373
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (13,122)
Accounts receivable, he $ 4,629,251

Investments and Fair Value Measurements

PaintCare invests a portion of its accunedasurplus in a portfolio with Bank of
America/Merrill Lynch. The solebjective of the portfolio is tearn a return equal to the

rate of inflation and thus preserve the puraigapower of its capital. Interest, dividends,
changes in market valuend other investment activities are allocated to each state
program based on the relative net asset balances of each state program. Oversight of the
investments is provided by the PaintCare Budget and Finance Committee and by the
PaintCare Board of Directors.

PaintCare follows Financial Accounting Stiards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 820/[air Value Measurements and Disclosurés:, its financial
assets. This standard establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure Yalue. Fair value measurement standards
require an entity to maximize the use of olabte inputs (such as quoted prices in active
markets) and minimize the use of unobsemaibiputs (such as pmisals or other
valuation techniques) to determine fairlue The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based uploa pricing transparenayf the instrument

and does not necessarily corresptmthe entity’s perceivedsk of that instrument.



PaintCare Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

Investments and Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The inputs used in measuring fair value ategarized into three \e@ls. Level 1 inputs
consist of unadjusted quoted prices in actimarkets for identical assets and liabilities
and have the highest priority. Level 2Zogsed upon observableputs other than quoted
market prices, and Level 3 msed on unobservable inpuiBransfers between levels in
the fair value hierarchy are recogrizat the end of the reporting period.

In general, and where applicable, Paint&Cases quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets to determine fair valu&his pricing methodology applies to Level 1

investments. Level 2 inputs include govermmsecurities, which are valued based on
guoted prices in less active markets.

The following table presents PaintCare’s feaue hierarchy for those assets measured
on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equities:

Energy $ 276,294% - $ -$ 276,294

Materials 242,497 - - 242,497

Industrials 629,303 - - 629,303

Consumer discretionary 1,008,268 - 1,008,268

Consumer staples 1,416,235 - 1,416,235

Health care 1,370,173 - 1,370,173

Financials 913,762 - 913,762

Information technology 987,365 - 987,365

Telecommunication

service 329,869 - 329,869

Utilities 33,086 - 33,086
Mutual funds:

Exchanged traded funds 2,186,781 - 2,186,781

Mid/small U.S. equity 375,552 - 375,552

Fixed income 4,303,977 - 4,303,977
Corporate bonds 5,889,552 - 5,889,552
Cash equivalents 608,834 - 608,834
Government securities:

U.S. Treasury - 7,411,772 - 7,411,772

U.S. Agency - 4,390,827 - 4,390,827
Total investments $ 20,571,548 $ 11,802,599 $ $- 32,374,147

10



5.

PaintCare Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016
Investments and Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Investment income consisted of the following for the twelve month period ended
December 31, 2016:

Interest and dividend income $ 810,900
Net realized and unrealized gain 439,166
Total investment income $ 1,250,066

Property and Equipment

PaintCare held the following propgrnd equipment at December 31, 2016:

Software $ 421,822
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization (125,365)
Property and equipment, net $ 296,457
RelatedParty

ACA, a related party, is a separate, 5Bcnonprofit organizatin working to advance

the needs of the paint and coatings inqustnd the professionals who work in it.
Through advocacy of the industry and its positiondegislative, regulatory, and judicial
issues at the federal, state, and local levels, it acts as an effective ally, ensuring that the
industry is represented and fairly considereACA also devotes itself to advancing
industry efforts with regartb product stewardship, througfis signature Coating Cédte
resources, and focuses on advancements in science and technology through its technical
conferences and journals, as well as anliraining opportunities. ACA incorporated
PaintCare for the sole purpose of impletmenprograms for post-consumer architectural
paint. ACA maintains a controlling interestRaintCare through the itity to appoint its

Board of Directors.

In February 2011, ACA and PaintCare entemeto an affiliation agreement whereby
ACA charges PaintCare an administrative faenually, to cover #hfollowing expense
categories: allocation of time incurred by PaintCare officers, allocation of other direct
labor, and allocation of occupancy and infradtite costs. The term of the agreement is
for one year and automatically renews for-gear terms unless canceled by either party.

11



PaintCare Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

Related Party (continued)

For the twelve month period ended Detem31, 2016, the total administrative fees
charged by ACA to PaintCare were $1,765,154. At December 31, 2016, PaintCare owed
ACA $707,370, which is recorded as due ffiliate in the accompanying statement of
financial position.

IncomeTaxes

PaintCare is recognized agax-exempt organization under Internal Revenue Code (IRC)
Section 501(c)(3), and is exptrfrom income taxes exceptrftaxes on unrelated business
activities. No tax expense iecorded in the accompangirfinancial statements for
PaintCare, as there was no uatetl business taxable incom€ontributions to PaintCare
are deductible as providedIRC Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi).

Management evaluated PaintCare’s tax itmmss, and concluded that PaintCare’s
financial statements do not imicle any uncertain tax positions.

12
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PaintCare Inc.

Schedule of Activities, Organized by Program

For the Twelve Month Period Ended December 31, 2016

District of General and
Oregon California Connecticut Rhode Island Minnesota VVermont Maine Colorado Columbia Administrative Total
Operating Revenue and Support
Paint recovery fees $ 4,665,094 35,335,484 $ 3,692,824 $ 945,742 $ 5,461,855 $ 749,398 $ 1,596,111 $ 6,778,509 $ 105,361 $ - 59,330,378
Other income 114,137 - - - - - - - - - 114,137
Total operating revenue and support 4,779,231 35,335,484 3,692,824 945,742 5,461,855 749,398 1,596,111 6,778,509 105,361 - 59,444,515
Expenses
Program and delivery services:
Collection support 20,627 2,990,073 365,298 95,368 460,906 72,043 144,114 498,367 21,937 - 4,668,733
Transportation and processing 4,532,993 21,367,002 1,836,663 456,335 4,726,037 563,672 801,171 3,516,020 15,209 - 37,815,102
Communications 73,004 4,644,544 468,523 89,798 250,737 10,765 73,203 644,074 20,854 - 6,275,502
Legal fees 4,922 68,089 7,269 4,297 - - 5,417 - 522 - 90,516
State agency administrative fees 40,000 167,154 20,000 - 42,624 30,000 61,500 240,000 50,000 - 651,278
Other program expenses 172,211 1,034,612 135,947 35,551 144,931 42,398 95,077 173,154 40,130 - 1,874,011
Total program and delivery services 4,843,757 30,271,474 2,833,700 681,349 5,625,235 718,878 1,180,482 5,071,615 148,652 - 51,375,142
General and administrative:
Legal fees - - - - - - - - - 46,334 46,334
Management fees - - - - - - - - - 1,765,154 1,765,154
Insurance - - - - - - - - - 190,760 190,760
Other expense - - - - - - - - - 2,134,016 2,134,016
Total general and administrative - - - - - - - - - 4,136,264 4,136,264
Total expenses 4,843,757 30,271,474 2,833,700 681,349 5,625,235 718,878 1,180,482 5,071,615 148,652 4,136,264 55,511,406
Change in Net Assets from Operations (64,526) 5,064,010 859,124 264,393 (163,380) 30,520 415,629 1,706,894 (43,291) (4,136,264) 3,933,109
Non-Operating Activities
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - - - - - - - - - (80,333) (80,333)
Investment income - - - - - - - - - 1,250,066 1,250,066
Change in Net Assets Before Allocation of
G&A Activities and Investment Income (64,526) 5,064,010 859,124 264,393 (163,380) 30,520 415,629 1,706,894 (43,291) (2,966,531) 5,102,842
General and administrative allocation (267,903) (2,605,134) (249,933) (73,605) (370,899) (43,757) (92,891) (351,687) (42,078) 4,097,887 -
Investment allocation - 1,193,169 - - (55,318) (21,112) (13,986) 32,066 (3,463) (1,131,356) -
Total Change in Net Assets (332,429) 3,652,045 609,191 190,788 (589,597) (34,349) 308,752 1,387,273 (88,832) - 5,102,842
Net Assets (Deficit) beginning of period 4,675 36,923,257 2,098,853 257,017 (1,277,932) (648,787) (463,922) 727,424 (73,913) - 37,546,672
Net Assets (Deficit)end of period $ (327,754) $ 40,575,302 $ 2,708,044 $ 447,805 $ (1,867,529)% (683,136) $ (155,170) $ 2,114,697 $ (162,745) $ - 42,649,514
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Colorado Paint
Stewardship Program

Each year about 650 million gallons
of architectural paint is sold in the
United States. Did you know that
about 10 percent goes unused and
is available for recycling?

Colorado’s Paint Stewardship Law requires

the paint manufacturing industry to develop

D oQDQFLDOO\ VXVWDLQDEOH DQG
UHVSRQVLEOH SURJUDP WR PDQDJ
architectural paint.

7KH SURJUDP LQFOXGHVY HGXFDWLR
the right amount of paint, tips for using up

remaining paint and setting up convenient

recycling locations throughout the state.

3DLQW PDQXIDFWXUHUV HVWDEOLYV
D QRQSUROW RUJDQL]DWLRQ WR U
SURJUDPV LQ VWDWHYV ZLWK DSSOL

PaintCare Products

paintcare’
These products have fees when you buy them and °
DUH DFFHSWHG IRU IUHH DW GURS R Qvatlv

e Inter LRU DQG H[WHULRU DUFKLWHFWXUDO SDLQWYV
ODWH[ DFU\OLF ZDWHU EDVHG DON\G RLO EDVHG
HQDPHO LQFOXGLQJ WH[WXUHG FRDWLQJV

v '"HFN FRDWLQJV pRRU SDLQWYV
(including elastomeric) e ‘ ‘ e
e Primers, sealers, undercoaters

* Stains . .
» Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes Wlth Pal ntcare

(single component)
« - DWHUSURRO0QJ FRQFUHWH PDVRQU\ ZRRG
sealers and repellents (not tar or
ELWXPHQ EDVHG
» Metal coatings, rust preventatives
* Field and lawn paints

Leaking, unlabeled and empty containers are
QRW DFFHSWHG DW GURS R VLWHV

® Non-PaintCare Products

e Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents
¢ Aerosol paints (spray cans)
e Auto and marine paints
e Art and craft paints
&DXON HSR[LHV JOXHV DGKHVLYHYV
Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins
Y L U R Q/dd@preben@tives (containing pesticides)
S RV W RBdRpaiv &ht repair
e $VSKDOW WDU DQG ELWXPHQ EDVHG SURGXFWYV
e 2-component coatings
DERXW B¥W FOoHDQHUV
e 7UDIoF DQG URDG PDUNLQJ SDLQWYV
* Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings
 Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM)
G 3DLQW&\6'§J'|3|S DSSOLFDWLRQ SDLQWYV DQG 0QLVKHV

SDLQW VWHZDUGVKLS
Y LRPPDWLRQ DERXW UHF\FOLQJ DQG SURSHU GLVSRVDO
P ERMq 3D

LQW&DUH SURGXFWVY SOHDVH FRQWDFW \RXU JDUEDJH
hauler, local environmental health agency, household
KD]DUGRXV ZDVWH SURJUDP RU SXEOLF ZRUNV GHSDUWBB@HRADO




SODFHV WR 7DNH 20 GWaa&t Hgppéns to the Paint?

Paint recycling is more convenient with PaintCare. 3DLQW&DUH ZLOO PDNH VXUH WKDW \RXU OHIWRYHU SDLQW LV

We set up paint drop-off sites throughout Colorado. UHPL[HG LQWR UHF\FOHG SDLQW XVHG DV D IXHO PDGH

7R 0QG \RXU QHDUHVW GURS RIlI VLWH iXt¥¢the Proddts & Dptoperly disposed. PaintCare Fee

sgr:l/:;:h tool at www.paintcare.org or call our hotline 3DLQW&DUH LV IXQGHG E\ D IHH SD
manufacturers for each can of paint they sell in

Who Can Use the Program? the state. Manufacturers pass the fee to retailers,

who then apply it to the price of paint. Stores can

How to Recycle People EULQJLQJ SDLQW IURP WKHLU KR RHbsERHethErtdLriatdo show the fee on their

DV PXFK ODWH[ RU RLO EDVHG SDLQW QJ\HM‘N_%\X/VWB-HHW DUH EDVHG RQ WK
3DLQW&DUH VLWHY DFFHSW DOO EUDQGWMIng o ReCe@t. KR XV H FRQWDLQHU DV IROORZV

SDLQW VWDLQ DQG YDUQLVK ¢« HYHQ LI WKH\ DUH
\HDUV ROG &RQWDLQHUV PXVW EH oY HBYSHNESEER (Pointing contractors and others)

FDQ XVH WKLV SURJUDP ZLWK RQH UHVWBOLFwaplntorsmauer U
smaller, and a few types of paint are not accepted.
6HH EDFN SDQHO IRU D OLVW RI ZzKDW \RXVERG VU B\ERGEXFHV PRUH WKDQ SRX \|7arqsr€13%Wp'mtosma"erthan 1 gallon

JDOORQV RI KD]JDUGRXV ZDVWH SHW?JER@QWH@”\RX
$00 3DLQW&DUH GURS RII VLWHV DFFHSW\XSVWRNVKHYHGURS RII VLWHV IRU \R XU $Q.B0V kfgs e Wako® ap\to 5 gallons
gallons of paint per visit. Some sites accept more. EXW QRW IRU \RXU RLO EDVHG SDLQW &RQWDFW 3DLQW&DUH
30HDVH FDOO WKH VLWH LQ DGYDQFH WR/ R IONHD VRUMRW KHD ERXQW WKLY UHVWULFWLRQ
DFFHSW WKH DPRXQW Rl SDLQW \RX ZRXOG OLNH WR UHF\FOH

ODNH VXUH DOO FRQWDLQHUV RI SDLQW H \%
RULJLQDO ODEHOV DQG ORDG WKHP VH/FﬁJUOft_g \QDQJCDXPH BLFN 88 .
YHKLFOH 7DNH WKHP WR D GURS RIl VLWHRGXRBRH B OWDvw  Jpoorov R sBQkd MRPOSI

UHJXODU EXVLQHVV KRXUV 'H OO WDNHJHMHAORPWHKEXH EXVLQHVV RU The fee is not a deposit — it is part of the
KRPH DVN DERXW RXU IUHH purchase price. The fees are used to pay the
SLFN XS VHUYLFH 30OHDVH FDOO FRVWV RI UXQQLQJ WKH SURJUDP |
for more details or to HGXFDWLRQ VWDIoQJ DQG RWKHU

request an appointment.

Contact Us

7R OHDUQ PRUH RU o0QG D GURS RII
22Z SDLQWFDUH RUJ RU FDOO



‘ poinEcar‘e®

o

It's easy to recycle
your leftover paint,
stain and varnish.

Recycle with PaintCare

Buy right.
Use it up.
Recycle the rest.

Manufacturers of paint created

SDLQW&DUH D QRQSUR¢{;W RUJDC
to set up convenient places for you to

UHF\FOH OHIWRYHU SDLQW :HfU
to provide environmentally sound

DQG FRVW HIIHFWLYH UHF\FOLQJ
in your state and others with paint

stewardship laws.

LEARN MORE

Visit or follow us

on Facebook for tips on how to buy

the right amount of paint, store paint

properly, use up leftover paint, and

0QG D GURS RIl VLWH :H DOVR KEC
IUHH SLFN XS VHUYLFH IRU EXVLQ
households with at least 300 gallons

of paint to recycle.



paintcare’ COLORADO START DATE
o JULY 1, 2015

Paint Recycling Program

About the PaintCare Program

PAINTCARE

3DLQW PDQXIDFWXUHUV FUHDWHG 3DLQW&DUH D QRQ SURoW RUJDQL]D
WR UHF\FOH OHIWRYHU SDLQW :H DUH VHWWLQJ XS GURS RIlI VLWHV W]

paint stewardship laws.

PAINTCARE PRODUCTS © NON-PAINTCARE PRODUCTS
These products have fees when purchased and will « Paint thinners and solvents
be accepted for free at PaintCare drop-off sites: - Aerosol paints (spray cans)

* Auto and marine paints

» Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins

» Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)
e Tar, asphalt, and bitumen-based products
e 2-component coatings

Latex paints (acrylic, water-based)
Oil-based paints (alkyd)

e Stains

¢ Primers and undercoaters

Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes
v 'HFN DQG pRRU SDLQWYV v &RDWLQJV XVHG IRU 2ULJLQDO (TX

v 6HDOHUV DQG ZDWHUSURR0QJ FRDWLQIPQR{PFWXULQJ RU VKRS DSSOLFD
wood, concrete and masonry ¢ Any non-coatings (caulk, spackle, cleaners, etc.)

FEES
The “PaintCare Recovery Fee” is applied to the purchase price
RI DUFKLWHFWXUDO SDLQW VROG LQ WKH VWDWH DV UHTXLUHG E\ VWDWH ODZ

JHHY DUH EDVHG RQ FRQWDLQHU VL]H DV IROORZV

+DOI SLQW RU OHVV
ORUH WKDQ KDOI SLQW WR OHVV WKDQ JDOORQ

JDOORQ
ORUH WKDQ JDOORQ XS WR JDQORQV

JRU PRUH LQIRUPDWLRQ RU WR ¢QG D SODFH WR WDNH \RXU
XQZDQWHG SDLQW IRU UHF\FOLQJ SOHDVH DVN IRU WKH 3DLQW&DUH
brochure, visit www.paintcare.org or call  (855) 724-6809

Recycle with PaintCare
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COLORADO PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM

Information for Painting Contract

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

Colorado’s paint stewardship law Fees and Funding
o As required by state lawpaint stewardship assessment
affects painting contractors. (PaintCare Fee) must be added by manufacturers to the

wholesale price of all architeatyraint sold in the state.

A Colorado law passed in 2014 requires manufacturersdfis fee is paid by manufacturers to PaintCare to fund
paint to set up and operate a paint stewardship progranséfting up drop-off sites for leftover, postconsumer paint
Colorado. The program is funded by a fee on architectugald for the transportation, recycling, and proper disposal
paint sold in the state. The program sets up drop-off sit@$ that paint. The fees also pay for consumer education
at retailers and other locations where households and and program administrative costs.

businesses are able to take most leftover paint, free of

charge. The program started July 1, 2015. Fee may vary from state to state. The Colorado fees per

container are as follows:
Paint Stewardship
The American Coatings Association (ACA) worked with® 0-00F Half pint or smaller
various stakeholders interested in the management of $ 0.35F Larger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon
postconsumer paint to develop a Paint Stewardship ~ $ 0.75F 1 Gallon
Program in the United States. PaintCare Inc. is a nonpr8fit.60 F Larger than 1 gallon to 5 gallons
organization established by ACA to implement the
program on behalf of paintmuéacturers in states that  The law also requires that each distributor and retailer
adopt paint stewardship laws. PaintCare currently include the PaintCare Fee with their sale price of
operates programs in eighatsts (California, Colorado, architectural paint sold in ttate. Displaying the fee on
Connecticut, Maine, Minnesota, Oregon, Rhode Island,iamdices and receipts is not mandatory for distributors or
Vermont) and the District of Columbia. retailers; however, PaintGameourages them to show

the fee and list it as PaintCare Fee to aid in customer and

The main goals of the program are to decrease paint  jealer education and to ensure transparency.
waste and recycle more postconsumer paint by setting up

convenient drop-off sites in each PaintCare state. Notice for Painting Contractors
It is expected that conttars will pass the fees on

to their customers in order to recoup the fees they
pay on the products.

When estimating jobs, contractors should take these
fees into account by checking with your suppliers to
make sure the quotes for paint products include the
fees. You should also let your customers know that
you will be including these fees in your quotes.



New Paint Drop-Off Sites WHAT PRODUCTS ARE COVERED?

PaintCare has establishedrenthan 140 paint drop-off ~ The products accepted airR@are drop-off sites are the
sites across Colorado. Most drop-off sites are at paint same products that have a fee when they are sold.

stores. Others may includdéidavaste transfer stations, PaintCare Products include interior and exterior

recycling centers, and government-sponsored househobtchitectural coatings sold in containers of 5 gallons or
hazardous waste programs. Participation as a drop-off less. However, they do not include aerosol products (spray
site is voluntary. cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original equipment

_ _ _ manufacturer (OEM),specialty coatings.
Use of Retail Drop-Off Sites by Businesses

Retail sites provide a convenient and no cost recycling PaintCare Products

option for painting contractors and other businesses. Interior and exterior architectural paints: latex, acrylic,
Businesses that generate less than 220 pounds of water-based, alkyd, oil-based, enamel (including
hazardous waste* per month will be able to use these textured coatings)
sites to recycle all program products (both water and oil-  Deck coatings, floor paints (including elastomeric)
based) with some restrictions on quantities per month. Primers, sealers, undercoaters

Stains

Larger businesses (those that generate more than 220 Shellacs, lacquers, vamishes, urethanes (single
pounds of hazardous waste per month) may use the drop- component)

off sites for their water-based program products only; they Waterproofing concrete/masonry/wood sealers and
are not able to use the sites for oil-based paint or other  repellents (not tar or bitumen-based)
solvent-based products. Metal coatings, rust preventatives

*220 pounds is about 20-30 gallons of paint. When Field and lawn paints

counting how much hazardous waste you generate in a
month, oil-based paint counts (because by law it is a
hazardous waste), but laex other water-based paint Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents
does not count toward the 220 pound monthly total. Aerosol paints (spray cans)

Auto and marine paints

Art and craft paints

Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, adhesives

Non-Paintcare Products

Pick-Up Service for Large Volumes Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins
Businesses with at least 300 gallons of postconsumer Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)
paint to recycle may qualify to have their paint picked up  Roof patch and repair

by PaintCare at no additional cost. To learn more about:  Asphalt, tar, and bitumen-based products

this service or to request an appointment, please visit 2-component coatings
www.paintcare.org/pickup or call (855) 724-6809. Deck cleaners

Contact Traffic and road marking paints

Kevin Lynch Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings

Colorado Program Manager Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) (shop
(720)481-8858 application) paints and finishes
klynch@paint.org

901 NEW YORK AVE NWASHINGTON, DC 200@&55) 724-6809www.paintcare.ory info@paintcare.org



DO YOU HAVE AT LEAST 300 GALLONS OF PAINT?

Large Volume Pick-Up (LVP) Ser

UPDATEBF NOVEMBER 2016

PaintCare offers a free pick_up HOW TO REQUEST A LARGE VOLUME PICK-UP
service to painting contractors, 1. Sort and count your paint
We need to know the number of each container size and
property managers, and others with the type of products you have, sorted into two categories:
(1) water-based paints andiss and (2) oil-based paint
Iarge amounts of leftover and stains and any other program products (sealers and

architectural paint. clear top-coat products, such as varnish and shellac).

2. Fill out the LVP Request Form and send it in
Who is PaintCare? Fill out a paper or electronic version of the “Large Volume

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established by’ick-Up Request Form” and reitumpPaintCare by email,
the American Coatings Association to operate paint fax_, or regular mail. (Visit www.paintcare.org/forms or call
stewardship programs on betwdlpaint manufacturers in PaintCare for the form.)

states that pass paint stewardship laws. _
Scheduling

Paint Drop-Off Sites After reviewing your forRgintCare staff will either

In states with a paint stewardship program, PaintCare’sapprove your site for a pick-up or inform you of the best
primary effort is to set up conveniently located drop-off Place to take your paint if you do not meet the volume
sites—places where residents and businesses may tak&equirement. If approved, you will be put in contact with
their unwanted paint for no charge. Sites set their own our licensed hauler to schedule a pick-up. It may be
limits on the volume of paihey accept from customers Several weeks before your pick-up occurs.

per visit (usually from five to 20 gallons). To find a drop-off

site near you, please use PaintCare’s site locator at On the Day of Your_ Pick-Up _
www.paintcare.org or call (855) 724-6809. Sort your products into the two categories noted above

and store them in an area that has easy acdeéess.
Large Volumes Pick-Ups must be in original containers and not le#iiing paint

For those who have accumulated a |arge volume or is a far distance from where the hauler parks, the path
Stockp“e of paint, PaintCare also offers a pick-up Servid@tween should be at least four feet wide to accommodate
Large volume means at least 300 gallons, measured bymovement of the boxes.

container size (not content). On a case-by-case basis,

PaintCare may approve a pick-up for less than 300 gallons

if there are no drop-off sites in your area. After two or

three pick-ups, you may be switched to a recurring service

(see next page).

Drums and Bulked Paint Are Not Accepted

PaintCare only accepts paint in containers that are five
gallons or smaller in size. Leave paint in original cans with
original labels; do not combine or bulk paint from small
cans into larger ones. If you have unwanted paint in drums
or containers larger than five gallons, please contact a
licensed paint recycling company or a hazardous waste
transportation company to assist you.



Please plan to have staff available to pack the paint car
into the boxes. The hauler may be able to provide some
assistance, but we require your staff to be present and
provide labor to pack boxes. Once your paint is properl
packed and loaded onto theileds truck, you will sign a
shipping document and receive a copy for your records
Your paint will then be taken to an authorized processir
facility for recycling.

Recurring Service for Large Volume Users

For businesses that generate large volumes of unwante
paint on a regular basis, a service for recurring direct pi
ups is available. With this service, you will be provided !
empty bins, then request a pick-up when at least three |
are filled. PaintCare will prevashsite training on how to
properly pack the paint, and ywll be required to sign a
contract with PaintCare.

Limits on Businesses

If your business generates more than 220 Ibs. (20-30
gallons depending on the type) of hazardous waste per
month or your business has accumulated more than 2,2
Ibs., you may use PaintCare’s programs (drop-off sites
the pick-up service) for water-based program products
only. You will not be able to use the program for oil-bas
products.

If your business generates less than 220 Ibs. of hazard:
waste per month and you have not accumulated more
than 2,200 Ibs. of hazradous waste, you may use
PaintCare programs for both water-based program
products and oil-based program products. As a busines
you will need to certify that you meet this requirement.

Note: When calculating how much hazardous waste yol
generate in a month, do not count latex paint.

If You Have Products We Don't Accept

The program does not accept all paints (such as aerosc
and automotive finishes) ohet hazardous waste. If you
have solvents, thinners, pesticides, or any non-PaintCa
products (see list to right), we recommend that resident
contact their local household hazardous waste (HHW)
program. Some HHW programs allow businesses to us
their program for a moddse. Otherwise, businesses
should contact a licensed hazardous waste transportati
company.

What Products Are Covered?

The products acceptedRaintCare drop-off sites are
the same products that have a fee when they are sold.
PaintCare Products include interior and exterior
architectural coatings sold in containers of five gallons
or less. However, they do not include aerosol products
(spray cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original
equipment manufacturer (OEM), or specialty coatings.

PAINTCARE PRODUCTS

Interior and exterior architectural paints: latex,
acrylic, water-based, alkpil-based, enamel
(including textured coatings)

Deck coatings, floor paints

Primers, sealers, undercoaters

Stains

Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes

Waterproofing concrete/masonry/wood sealers
and repellents (not tar or bitumen-based)

Metal coatings, rust preventatives
Field and lawn paints

NON-PAINTCARE PRODUCTS
Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents
Aerosol paints (spray cans)
Auto and marine paints
Art and craft paints
Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, adhesives
Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins
Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)
Roof patch and repair
Asphalt, tar, and bitumen-based products
2-component coatings
Deck cleaners
Traffic and road marking paints
Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) (shop
application) paints and finishes

901 New York Ave NWiVashington, DC 2000%855) 724-6809www.paintcare.ory info@paint.org



Order Form for PaintCare Print MateoatsRADO

For free PaintCare brochures, $aetets, posters and other items

Store Name

Street Address

City/State/Zip

Contact Person

Phone
Email
A B C D E
How Many?
Iltem Description English  Spanish

General information about the
PaintCare Program

Quick reference to help customers
find drop-off sites

Information about the program
especially for painting contractors
How to request a direct pick-up for
560 gallons or more
General PaintCare information on|1
page (8.5 x 11)
Would you like a holder to keep the
brochures neat and in one place?

A Program Brochure

B Mini Card

C Painting Contractor Fact Sheet

D

D Large Volume Pick-Up Fact Sh

E Program Poster

Brochure Holder yes no

Three Ways to Order

N Online: www.paintcare.org/forms P Fill out this form and send it to us:
Emailretail@paintcare.org

O By Phone: (855) 724-6809 Fax: (855) 385-2020 _
Mail: PaintCare, 901 New York Ave NW, Washington DC 20001
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Recycle your
paint here.

[IDURING BUSINESS HOURS ONLY]

ACCEPTABLE @ NOT ACCEPTABLE
 Latex house paint  Paint thinner

* Oil-based house paint » Two-component paints
* Primer » Aerosols

e Stains and sealers e Other chemicals

* Varnish and shellac
« All brands PLEASE DON'T BRING
CONTAINERS THAT ARE

* Leaking
* Unlabeled
* Empty

Recycle with PaintCare

For a complete list of acceptable products, please ask for the PaintCare
brochure, call (855) 724-6809  or visit www.paintcare.org .
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PAINTCARE PRODUCTS PRODUCTOS DEL PROGRAMA

These products have fees when purchased Estos productos tienen cargos al comprarlos y se acepta
and are accepted for free at drop-off sites: gratuitamente en los lugares de entrega:

 Interior and exterior architectural paints: + Pinturas arquitecténicas para interiores y exteriores:
latex, acrylic, water-based, alkyd, oil-based, latex, acrilica, a base de agua, alquidica, a base de ag
enamel (including textured coatings) esmalte (incluidos los revestimientos con textura)

(IGO GSEXMRKW ¥SSV TEMR XVWRevisttrteRtysHhM&Rt&razas, pinturas para piso (incl
elastomeric) elastbmeros)

Primers, sealers, undercoaters Imprimadores, selladores, primera mano
Stains Tinturas

Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes Goma lacas, lacas, barnices, uretanos (componente
(single component) simple)

EXIVTVSSaRK GSRGVIXI QEW-S&e\dddresSdd impermeabilizacion de concreto/
sealers and repellents (not tar or bitumen- mamposteria/madera y repelentes (sin alquitran o a be
based) de betun)

Metal coatings, rust preventatives Revestimiento de metal, prevencién de oxido
Field and lawn paints Pinturas para el campo y césped

X &

NON-PAINTCARE PRODUCTS NO SE INCLUYEN EN EL PROGRAMA

Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents Diluyentes, alcoholes minerales, solventes de pintura

Aerosol paints (spray cans) Pinturas en aerosol (latas de aerosol)
Auto and marine paints Pinturas para autos y embarcaciones
Arts and crafts paints Pinturas artesanales

Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, Compuestos de enmasillado, epdxidos, pegamentos,
adhesives adhesivos

Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins Aditivos para pinturas, colorantes, tintes, resinas
Wood preservatives (containing pesticides) Conservantes de madera (que contienen pesticidas)
Roof patch and repair Remiendos y reparacion de techos

Tar and bitumen-based products Alguitran y productos a base de betln

2-component coatings * Revestimientos de componente doble

Deck cleaners » Limpiadores de terrazas

8VEJeG ERH VSEH QEVOMRK FEMRRXXWVEW HI XVgeGS | WIVEPM”"E

Industrial Maintenance * Revestimientos industriales de mantenimiento (IM, po

(IM) coatings sus siglas en inglés)

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) * Pinturas y acabados de fabricantes de equipos origina
WLST ETTPMGEXMSR TEMR XW/(EERNHpar RS Mglas @n inglés) (aplicacion en la tiend

Products must be in original containers with original labels. Los productos deben estar en sus envases originales.
Latex paint that is dried out and “rock hard” is acceptable. Se acepta pintura de latex que esté seca y “dura como una roca.”
Leaking, unlabeled, and empty containers are not accepted. No se aceptan envases vacios, que tengan fugas, o sin etiqueta.
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We're a PaintCare
Drop-Off Site

& WE ACCEPT

» Latex House Paint » Stains
» Oil-Based House Paint -« Sealers
* Primer » Varnish and Shellac

@ WE CAN'T ACCEPT

» Aerosols (Spray Cans) < Thinner and Solvent
« Auto and Marine Paints  « Caulk and Spackle

» 2-Part Paints * Wood Treatment/

* Road Marking Paint Preservatives

¢ Industrial Paint * Deck Cleaner

» Tints and Resins » Tar/Asphalt Products

CONTAINERS

* No larger than 5 gallons  « Must not be leaking
« Must have original labels < Must have secure lids










Store

Address
City/Zip
Contact Person
Phone/Email

1. NoDumping Sign

3. Program Partner Sign

Sign Order Form

FORRETAL DROP-OH-STES

Please complete this form and send it to PaintCare. Indicate the quantities you would like below.

English 24x36 (Metal)
English 12x18 (Metal)
Spanish 24x36 (Metal)
Spanish 12x18 (Metal)
Chinese 24x36 (Metal)

Chinese 12x18 (Metal)

English 24x36 (Metal)
English 12x18 (Metal)

with A-Frame 24x36 (Plastic)

5. Wait for Assistarce Sign

Bilingual (Eng/Span) with A-Frame 24x1

(Plastic)

2. Program Products Sign
Detailed list of products covered by PaintCare.

6. Courter Mat
For paint counters and checkout stands.

English 14x19

Emai: retail@paint.orgFax (855) 385-2020

English 24x36 (Metal)
English 12x18 (Metal)
Spanish 24x36 (Metal)
Spanish 12x18 (Metal)
Bilingual (Eng/Span) 24x36 (Metal

Bilingual (Eng/Span) 12x18 (Metal

4. Acceptable / Na-Acceptable Sign
Simplified list of products covered by PaintCare.

English 24x36 (Metal)

English 12x18(Metal)

Bilingual (Eng/Span) 24x36 (Metal
Korean 24x36 (Metal)

Korean 12x18 (Metal)

* Only available in 24x36

PaintCare Inc. 901 New York AMW i Washington, DC 2000vww.paintcare.org info@paint.org (855) 724-6809



FOR GOVERNMENT AGENCIES PARTNERING WITH PAINTCA

Joint Outreach Project

UPDATEPF FEBRUARY 2017

THE BASICS WHAT WE ASK OF YOU DESIGN ASSISTANCE

PaintCare can provide assistance with
Introduction Print-Based basic layout and graphic design using
If you are a local government that has For print materials (brochures, our in-house staff. When we provide

partnered with PaintCare, we offer postcards, etc.) you will be responsibleihig type of assistance we will provide
limited funding support for outreach  for sending artwork files to your printerejectronic files for you to send for
activities that involve PaintCare. coordinating mailings, and distribution.priming or ad placement. Other than
After the project is completed, along  editing and commenting on scripts, we
We are most interested in partnering  with your invoice, we ask for a do not provide in-house assistance
with you when we are setting up new  description of how, when, and where wjth audio or video production.
PaintCare sites, where participation is the piece was distributed or used, and
low, and to promote one-day householgn electronic copy of the final piece. Please allow plenty of time for project

hazardous waste events to boost the planning, approvals, and some back-
amount of paint we can collect at one Newspaper and-forth editing. Depending on the
time. We have supported radio, For newspaper ads, you will be time of year, this may take 4-8 weeks.
newspaper and direct mail advertising responsible for sending artwork files to
and will consider other media. the newspaper and scheduling. At the REIMBURSEMENT

start of the project, we ask you to PaintCare provides reimbursements for
Review and Approval provide PaintCare with draft text, pre-approved projects only. We do not

Project budgets and all creative work  dimensions and due dates for the ads. provide money up front, pay vendors
must be reviewed and pre-approved bfter the project is completed, we ask directly, or accept requests for

PaintCare. Creative work includes textfor a list of run dates for each reimbursements on projects that have

images, and scripts. When possible, alhewspaper and a scan or clipping of already been completed. Generally

projects must include PaintCare’s  each ad. PaintCare will reimburse for half of the

website address and logo and mention total direct costs for pre-approved

that people can find PaintCare drop-offRadio projects; however, we might offer a

sites in other areas (via our website). For radio advertising, you will be different amount based on how much
responsible for providing the pre-

of the message is dedicated to
PaintCare, our budgets, and our other
outreach taking place in your area.

Proposal Form approved scripts to the stations and
Please complete our Proposal Form fopandling scheduling. After the project
Joint Outreach Projects and email it tojs completed, along with your invoice,
pfresina@paint.org or your local we ask you to prOVide text of the final To be reimbursed, send an invoice from
PaintCare staff person. The Word and script with a list of run dates and timeSyour government agency, samples of

pdf versions of the form canbe ) the final pieces, and copies of invoices
downloaded from the Waste Facilities Other from your vendors to Paul Fresina at

section Qf each state’s page at For ?ther' tyli)esr?f projects, W_Glll will aSkpfresina@paint.org and copy
www.paintcare.org. you for similar things — you wi paintcare@bill.com to expedite

coordinate everything and send payment. The “To:” space on the
Flickr PaintCare supporting documentation ' '

invoice should be addressed to
PaintCare Inc., 901 New York Ave NW
Suite 300, Washington DC, 20001. In
the space for purchase orders please
write “5839.” See sample invoice
below.

We have lots of artwork and photos  along with your invoice so we have a

you can borrow for creating drafts at  record of the projects and examples to
www.flickr.com/photos/paintcare/, but show others.

please be sure to ask for permission to
use them in your final design.



{Sample Invoice}

Environmental Services Program
Washington County
123 Government Way
Anytown, State 55776

February 17, 2017

Invoice: 2452187

Purchase Order: 5839

Paul Fresina

PaintCare Inc.

901 New York Ave NW Suite 300
Washington DC, 20005

Description:

X

X

Newspaper ad promoting one daytdweld in Anytown on May 1, 2016
Three 5x5 ads ran on April 13, 20, 17 in the County Journal

Total invoices from newspapers: $1,487.00

Invoice and copy of one ad are attached

Per prior discussion, PaintCare agreed to reimburse county for $750

Contact person: Marie Chen, 202-555-1212

Invoice Amount: $750.00

Remit to: Environmental Services Program

Washingtofounty
123Government/ay
AnytownStateb5776

901 NEW YORK AVE NWASHINGTON, DC 200@&55) 724-6809 www.paintcare.ory info@paint.org



Suggestion®n Howto Linkto PaintCare

A. LONGVERSION

B. SHORVERSION

IMAGEFORDOWNLOAD

Doyou haveonly paint, stain and varnishto recycle?

Many paint storesnow take backhousepaint (includingstainand
varnish)yearround duringtheir regularbusinesshoursaspart of the
PaintCareprogram.If the only householdhazardousvastesyou have
for recyclingor disposalkre paint, findinga placeto take them is now
easierand more convenientin our community.[Note: thesesitesdo
not acceptnon paint productssuchasthinner, solvents spackle,
pesticidespr cleaningchemicals.]

The{state name}PaintStewardshigProgramis run by PaintCarea
nonprofit organizationfunded by a nominalfee on the price of new
paint. Residentand mostbusinessefrom anypart of the state may
useanyPaintCareetail location.PaintCarelsooffersa pick up
serviceif you haveat least300gallonsof unwantedpaint.

Thereisno chargewhenyoudrop off your paint or haveit pickedup.
Tofind participatingdrop off locations,Jearnmore aboutthe pickup
service or find out which productsare accepted pleasevisit
www.paintcare.orgor call (855)724 6809

Doyou haveonly paint, stain andvarnishto recycle?

Many paint storesnow take backpaint, stain,andvarnishyearround
duringtheir regularbusinesshoursaspart of the PaintCargorogram.
Theprogramisfree for all residentsand mostbusinessesTofind
participatingdrop off locationsand detailsaboutwhich productsare
accepted pleasevisitwww.paintcare.orgor call(855) 724 6809

http://www.paintcare.org/partnerlink/



COLORADO PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM

How Does the Colorado Paint Stews

Colorado’s paint stewardship law
requires paint manufacturers to set
up and operate a Paint Stewardship
Program in the state. Funding for the
program comes from a fee applied to
the price of architectural paint sold in
Colorado. The program started in

July 2015.

Paint Stewardship Program in Colorado

Program Affect Paint Retaile

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

Convenient Paint Recycling

PaintCare’s primary effort is to set up paint drop-off sites
in PaintCare states to make it more convenient for
households and businesses to recycle paint. In addition to
retailers, PaintCare sites may include municipal household
hazardous waste facilities airdp-off events, solid waste
transfer stations, and lailldf There are currently more

than 1,700 paint drop-off sites across eight states
(California, Colorado, Connecticut, Oregon, Maine,
Minnesota, Rhode Island, and Vermont) and the District of
Columbia.

Participation as a Drop-Off Site is Voluntary
Paint retailers that would like to be drop-off sites can
participate if they have space for paint storage bins and

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established by, provide minimal staff time to accept paint from the
the American Coatings Association to implement state-yypjic. By doing so, retailers can increase foot traffic and
mandated paint stewardship programs on behalf of paindgjes; and provide a new service for their community. They

manufacturers in statesathadopt paint stewardship

make it convenient for their customers to recycle leftover

laws. The Colorado program is required by state law, byldint and help provide relief to local government programs

is designed and operated by the paint manufacturing
industry through PaintCare.

that currently manage leftopaint. PaintCare provides
storage bins, supplies, and site training. PaintCare also
pays for paint transportation and recycling and promotes
the sites to the local community.

REQUIREMENTS OF RETAILERS

1. Check Registered Manufacturers and Brands

Retailers may not sell architectural paints in Colorado that
are not registered. Paint manufacturers must register their
company with PaintCare, and they must register all
architectural paint brands tregjl in the state. PaintCare
publishes lists of registers@nufacturers and brands so
that retailers can check to see that the products they sell
are registered. Please visitwwpaintcare.org/lists to view
registration lists.



2. Pass on the Stewardship Fee may increase or decrease and be different from state to
The law requires that a stewardship fee (PaintCare Feedihee.

applied by manufacturerstie wholesale price of all

architectural paint sold in Colorado. This fee pays for allS Sales tax applied to the fee, itself?

aspects of running the program. The fee is paid by Yes. The fee is part of theghase price; therefore, sales
manufacturers to PaintCare and then passed to their 1@X iS collected on the fee.

dealers. Retailers will see the PaintCare Fee on iNVOICES, e show the fee on receipts?

from suppliers. The law also requires that retailers and No, but most stores show the fee in order to explain the

distributors apply the fee to the price of architectural paE\Iice increase. PaintCare enagas retailers to show the
they sell. The fees paid by the customers to the retailer<1;ee to increase awareness of the program

offsets the fees charged to the retailers. All
manufacturers, distributors, and retailers that sell Is the fee a deposit to be returned to customers?
architectural paint in Coldeamust pay the fee and pass No, the fee is not a deposit. Fees are used entirely

it down to their dealers, ensuring a level playing field fot@gover the expenses of running the program. Fees are
parties. not given back as a deposit for the return of paint or empty

paint cansFa common misunderstanding.
3. Provide Information to Customers

Paint retailers in Colorashaist provide customers with Do we refund the fee if a product is returned?
information regarding tpeogram and how paint is Yes, the fee should be refunded because it is part
managed. PaintCare has developed the materials, ensu#etihe purchase price.

they meet state requiremerdad provides them free of
charge to all paint retailers and others wishing to
distribute them.

How does the public know about the fee?

PaintCare provides materials for retailers to distribute to
the public to help explain the purpose of the fee, how the
program works, and how to find a paint drop-off location.
COMMON QUESTIONS ABOUT FEES Before the program start@@intCare provided public
information materials to all paint retailers. Additional
materials can be ordered as needed for no charge. In
addition to retailer information, PaintCare works with

How much are the fees?
The fees are based on container size as follows:

$ 0.00F Half pint or smaller contractor associations to get information to professional
$ 0.35F Larger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon Painting contractors, and conducts general outreach
$0.75F1 Gallon including newspaper, radio, television, and on-line

$ 1.60F Larger than 1 gallon to 5 gallons advertising.

How are the fees calculated? What products are covered?

Fees are set to cover the cost of a fully operating progréﬂ;hitectural paints include most house paints, stains, and
PaintCare estimates the annual sales of architectural p&i§@F coatings (e.g., varnish and shellac). For a definition
in each state, and divides the estimated annual expens@§architectural paint for the purposes of this program or
of the program by the estimated number of containers " €xa@mples of PaintCaned non-PaintCare products,

be sold, adjusted for container size, and determined a fB¥ase contact PaintCare or visit our website.

per size that will provide thedget needed to fund the

program. PaintCare is a nonprofit organization and

operates programs on a sthtestate basis, so the fees

901 NEW YORK AVE NWASHINGTON, DC 200@&55) 724-6809www.paintcare.ory info@paintcare.org



COLORADO PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM

Become a Retall Drop-Off Site for |

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

The PaintCare Program makes it Convenient Paint Recycling
_ _ _ PaintCare’s primary effort is to establish paint drop-off
easy for paint retailers to provide a sites throughout each PaintCare state to provide

convenient recycling options for the public. The program
allows households and businesses to return unused
their community. architectural paint to drop-off locations throughout each
PaintCare state.

convenient and valuable service for

A state law passed in 2014 requires paint manufacturers . .
. . . PaintCare has established more than 1,700 paint drop-off
to set up and operate a paint stewardship program in

: . . sites in eight states and the District of Columbia. Most
Colorado. The new law requires paint retailers to add a ; ) o )
. . _ drop-off sites are at painbsts. Other sites include solid
stewardship assessment (fée architectural paint

. waste transfer stations and government-sponsored
products and to make sure they are not selling

. . . : household hazardous waste programs. Participation as a
unregistered brands of architectural paint. Retailers may

. . . drop-off site is voluntary.
also volunteer to be paint drop-off sites. Retailers that P y
would like to learn more .about what it takes to join the  giqres that would like to become a drop-off site can fill out
program to be drop-off sites are encouraged to CONtact yhe |nterest Form available in the Retailers Section of
PaintCare for details. www.paintcare.org/co.

Paint Stewardship Program in Colorado Benefits to Retailers

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established byrpare gre many benefitdecoming a drop-off site.
the American Coatings Association to implement this

program on behalf of pamanufacturers in PaintCare  As a participating retailer, you will:

States (those that adopt paint stewardship laws). Make recycling of leftover paint more convenient for
PaintCare operates program<alifornia, Colorado, your customers

Connecticut, District of Columbia, Maine, Minnesota, Support the paint industry’s effort to lead the way in
Oregon, Rhode Island, and Vermont. being responsible for end-of-life management of its

own products
Promote your store asvinonmentally responsible
Increase customer foot traffic and sales

Help relieve local government of their cost of
managing leftover paint

Help prevent the improper disposal of paint in your
community



PaintCare Provides WHAT PRODUCTS ARE COVERED?

Listing of your store as a drop-off site on our websitdhe products accepted airR@are drop-off sites are the
and in advertisements and promotional materials same products that have a fee when they are sold.

Paint storage bins PaintCare products include interior and exterior
Transportation and recycling services for the collectagthitectural coatings sold in containers of five gallons or
paint less. However, they do not include aerosol products (spray
Training materials and dtafining at your site cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original equipment

Program brochures, signage and customer educatignanufacturer (OEM),specialty coatings.
materials

Spill kits PaintCare Products

Interior and exterior architectural paints: latex, acrylic,
water-based, alkyd, oil-based, enamel (including
textured coatings)

Deck coatings, floor paints (including elastomeric)
Primers, sealers, undercoaters

Drop-Off Site Responsibilities
Provide secure storage area for paint storage bins

Accept all brands of lefenfPaintCare products from

the public during operating hours

Place unopened PaintCare products in storage bins~ St@INS

Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes (single
component)

Waterproofing concrete/masonry/wood sealers and
repellents (not tar or bitumen-based)

Metal coatings, rust preventatives
Field and lawn paints

Keep storage bins neat and properly packed

Complete minimal paperwork related to tracking
outgoing paint shipments

Ensure staff are traithén PaintCare program
guidelines and operating procedures

Display “drop-off site” signs in store window and

display consumer education materials Non-PaintCare Products

Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents

Contact

Kevin Lynch Aerosol paints (spray cans)

Colorado Program Manager Auto and marine paints

(720)481-8858 Art and craft paints

klynch@paint.org Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, adhesives

Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins
Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)
Roof patch and repair

Asphalt, tar and bitumen-based products
2-component coatings

Deck cleaners

Traffic and road marking paints

Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) (shop
application) paints and finishes
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PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAMS IN THE U.S.

About PaintCare Fee

UPDATEB MARCH 2017

Laws in eight PaintCare States 3. What are the fees?
Fees are based on container size and vary by state or

require retailers to add a stewardship jurisdiction, as shown here.

assessment to architectural paint California, Colorado, ConnectidaiineOregon and Rite
Island

products and make sure they are not

selling unregistered brands of $ 0.00rHalf pint or smaller

_ _ $ 0.35rLarger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon
architectural paint. $ 0.75r1 gallon

$ 1.60rLarger than 1 gallon up to 5 gallons

Paint Stewardship Programs

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established b
American Coatings Association to implement paint
stewardship programs on belwdlpaint manufacturers in
states and the District of Columbia that pass paint $ 0.00rHalf pint or smaller

stewardship laws. The main goals of the program are tc $ 0.45rLarger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon
decrease paint waste and recycle more postconsumer $ 0.95r1 gallon up to 2 gallons

paint by setting up convenient drop-off sites in each sta $ 1.95rLarger than 2 gallons up to 5 gallons

Digrict Qolumbia (as of November 1, 2016)

1. What is the Recovery Fee and how does it work?

The PaintCare program is funded through a paint Minnesotdeffective September 1, 2017)
stewardship assessment called the PaintCare Fee — fees
are applied to the purchasie@iof architectural paint. $ 0.00rHalf pint or smaller

The fees fund collection, transportation, and processin¢c ¢ g 49 rLarger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon
unused postconsumer paint, public education about $0.99r1 gallon up to 2 gallons

proper paint management, and administrative costs. Th ¢ 1.99rLarger than 2 gallons up to 5 gallons
fee is paid to PaintCare by paint manufacturers. This fe

then added to the wholesat®l retail purchase price of

paint, passing the cost of managing postconsumer pain{/ernont(as of August 1, 2016)

to everyone who purchases paint. This reduces municipal

and state government costs for paint management and
provides a funding source for a more convenient,
statewide paint management program.

$ 0.00rHalf pint or smaller

$ 0.49rLarger than half pint to smaller than 1 gallon
$0.99r1 gallon

2. Do retailers have to pass on the fee? $ 1.99rLarger than 1 galion up to 5 gallons

Yes, each state’s or jurisdiction’s law requires retailers o
pass on the fee to consumers, ensuring a level playing
field for all parties.



4. How are fees calculated? 10. Do retailers add the fee on sales starting on

Fees are set to cover the cost of a fully implemented the first day of the program (i.e., on inventory

program. PaintCare estimates annual sales of paint in purchased before the first day) even though they

each state and then divides the cost of the program in tR&t N0t pay fees on inventory to the distributor or

state by the number of containers sold in that state. Nextanufacturer?

the fees are adjusted based on container size by taking[For new programs] Yes, in order to provide for a hard start
into consideration the typical percentage of unused paiﬂate, retailers must add the fee on all inventory sold on or
for each size (e.g., the percentage of unused paint fronfter the start date of the program. Fees collected on

one five-gallon container is typically less than from five €Xisting inventory stay with the retailer; they are not paid
one-gallon containers). back to the distributor or manufacturer.

PaintCare is a nonprofit organization, so the fees may bel: How does the public know about the fee?
decreased if set at a level beyond what is needed to cof&@ntCare provides public etian materials to retailers.

program expenses. Likewise, the fees may be increased}Se materials explain the purpose of the fee, where to
PaintCare does not collect enough money to cover the take paint for recycling, and other information about the

costs to operate the state program. program. When a new state program begins, PaintCare
mails a “starter pack” of materials to retailers. As needed,

5. Are retailers required to show the fee on retailers may order additional free materials from

receipts? PaintCare. In addition to retailer information, PaintCare

No, but PaintCare encourages retailers to do so and to works with contractor associations to get information to
display it as PaintCare Fee to aid in consumer educatiottade painters, and condugeneral outreach including
Most stores choose to show the fee on their receipts in newspaper, radio, television, and on-line advertising.
order to inform the consumer about the PaintCare

program and to explain the price increase. 12. How do we as a retailer know what products to
put the fee on?
6. Do retailers return the fee if someone returns a Your supplier’'s invoice should indicate that you are being
product? charged the fee, so you simply pass on the fee for those
Yes. The fee should be returned as part of the purchaséems. Additionally, PaintCare and each state’s oversight
price. agency list all architectural paint manufacturers and
brands that are registergm the program on their
7. Is the fee taxable? websites. Retailers may not sell brands that are not

Yes, the fee is part of the purchase price of paint. Saleségjstered with the program. If your store sells
is collected on the fee, except in a state that does not hamghitectural coatings that are not on the list of registered
a sales tax, such as Oregon. products, please notify PaintCare so we can contact the

_ _ manufacturer to get them registered.
8. Is the fee to be applied to paint sold to

customers who are exempt from sales taxes? 13. What Products Are Covered?

Yes, government agencies and other organizations thatrpe products accepted aiRGare drop-off sites are the

are exempt from sales taxed aintCare States (except sgme products that have a fee when they are sold.

for Oregon which has no sales tax) must still pay the fe@ajntCare Products include interior and exterior

because it is part of the price of paint. architectural coatings sold in containers of five gallons or

less. However, they do not include aerosol products (spray

cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original equipment

manufacturer (OEM), or spkigieoatings. For a detailed

ist of PaintCare and non-R@are products, please see
aintCare’s "Products We Accept" Web page.

9. Is the fee a deposit that is returned to

customers when they bring paint to a drop-off

site?

No, the fee is not a deposit. The fees are used entirely
cover the cost of running the program.
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COLORADO PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM

Information for Solid Waste Transfer Ste
Recycling Facilities and Landf

Colorado’s paint stewardship law

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

Making Paint Recycling More Convenient

PaintCare has establishedmpff sites statewide for

supports paint coll ection activities at

solid waste transfer stations,

households and businessesaike leftover architectural
paint. Although most drop-off sites are paint retailers,

household hazardous waste (HHW) facilities, solid waste

recycling facilities and landfills.

transfer stations, recyclingiféaies, and landfills may also

volunteer to be PaintCare drop-off sites and have their

A law passed in June 2014 requires paint manufacturerBaint transportation and recycling costs covered by
to establish a paint stewardship program in Colorado. PaintCare. Facilities that would like to become a drop-off

Sites that participate can save money on paint
management costs and expand services to their
customers.

site can fill out the Interest Form available in the Waste
Facilities section of www.paintcare.org/co.

Benefits to Drop-Off Sites

Paint Stewardship Program in Colorado

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established by
the American Coatings Association to implement state-
mandated paint stewardship programs on behalf of paint
manufacturers in statesathadopt paint stewardship

laws.

Colorado is the eighth state to pass such a law. Although

Make recycling of leftover paint more convenient for
your community

Save money on paint generated at your site or
managed through load check programs

Help your state conserve resources and keep paint out
of the solid waste stream

this program is required by state law, it is designed andpPaintCare Partners Receive

operated by the paint manufacturing industry. PaintCare
currently operates programs in eight states (California,

Storage bins for paint

Colorado, Connecticut, Maine, Minnesota, Oregon, Rhode Free paint transportation and processing services

Island, and Vermont) and the District of Columbia.

Staff training at your site
Program brochures and site signage
Publicity of your site (optional)

Optional: Offer paint in good condition to the public for
reuse, and receive a reimbursement based on either
volume ($1.60 per gallon) or by container (30 cents
per quart container, $1.20 per one-gallon container,
and $6.00 per five-gallon container). See our factsheet
Reuse Programs Compensation and Reporting for
details.



Drop-Off Site Responsibilities WHAT PRODUCTS ARE COVERED?
Provide secure storage area for cubic yard boxes orf he products accepted aiR@are drop-off sites are the

drums same products that have a fee when they are sold.
Accept PaintCare products from the public during PaintCare products include interior and exterior
normal operating hours architectural coatings sold in containers of five gallons or

Properly pack PaintCaredrcts in collection bins less. However, they do not include aerosol products (spray
Assist with loading and unloading of full and empty cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original equipment

storage bins manufacturer (OEM),specialty coatings.
Complete minimal paperwork to track outgoing paint
shipments PaintCare Products
Ensure staff are trainedRaintCare guidelines and Interior and exterior architectural paints: latex, acrylic,
safe operating procedures Water-based,-alkyd, oil-based, enamel (including
textured coatings)
Water-Based (Latex) Paint is a Resource Deck coatings, floor paints (including elastomeric)

An important goal of PaintCare is to conserve resources  primers. sealers. undercoaters
and increase the amount of paint that is recycled. Not al!

HHW programs accept water-based paint because it is Shellacs, lacquers, vamishes, urethanes (single
expensive to manage and is not classified as hazardous. component)

Households and businesses are often instructed to let Waterproofing concrete/masonry/wood sealers and
water-based paint dry out and then dispose of the dry repellents (not tar or bitumen-based)

paint in the trash. Through the PaintCare program, latex  \jetal coatings, rust preventatives

will be recycled to the maximum extent possible.

Stains

Field and lawn paints

Will PaintCare Require Operational Changes? Non-PaintCare Products
No. Your facility may continue to put restrictions on who
can access the paint collection program at your site. If
your facility only services a specific geographic region
(e.g., specific towns, cities or counties), you will not be
required to service custorménat live outside of your
service area. Similarly, if your facility is not permitted to
take business waste, you will not be required to do so.
(PaintCare retail sites accept paint from anyone in the

state, and from both households and businesses.) Roof patch and repair
Asphalt, tar and bitumen-based products

Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents

Aerosol paints (spray cans)

Auto and marine paints

Art and craft paints

Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, adhesives
Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins

Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)

Contact

Kevin Lynch

Colorado Program Manager
(720)481-8858
klynch@paint.org

2-component coatings

Deck cleaners

Traffic and road marking paints
Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) (shop
application) paints and finishes
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COLORADO PAINT STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM

Information for HHW Prograr

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

Colorado’s Paint Stewardship Making Paint Recycling Convenient
_ PaintCare has established drop-off sites throughout the
Law benefits household state for residents and businesses to take leftover

architectural paint. Although most drop-off sites are at
paint retailers, HHW programs, solid waste transfer
stations, recycling centers, and landfills may also

Alaw passed in June 2014 requires paint manufacturer\%lumeer to be PaintCare drop-off sites and have their

to establish a paint stewardship program in Colorado. paint transportation and recycling costs paid by PaintCare.
Household hazardous waste (HHW) programs that Facilities that would like to become a drop-off site can fill

participate car_1 save money on.palnt manage.ment COStYut the Interest Form available in the Waste Facilities
Program funding comes frorRaintCare Fegpplied to

each container of architectypaint sold in Colorado
when the program started in July 2015. Benefits of Partnering with PaintCare
Save on paint transportation and recycling costs

Conserve resources and keep paint out of the solid
waste stream

hazardous waste programs.

section of www.paintcare.org/co.

Paint Stewardship Program in Colorado

PaintCare Inc. is a nonprofit organization established by
the American Coatings Association to implement state-
mandated paint stewardship programs on behalf of paint
manufacturers in statesathadopt paint stewardship

laws. Colorado is the eighth state to pass such alaw. paintCare Partners Receive
Although this program is ragu by state law, it is Staff training at your site
designed and operatedthg paint manufacturing

industry. PaintCare currently operates programs in eight

states (California, Colorado, Connecticut, Maine, . . . .
_ Compensation for value-added services including
Minnesota, Oregon, Rhodentsland Vermont) and the paint reuse programs, bulking of oil-based paint, and

District of Columbia. other services

Make recycling of leftover paint more convenient for
your community

Paint collection bins
Free paint transportation and processing services

Designing a Program for Colorado Publicity of HHW site or event (optional)

The law required PaintCare, on behalf of paint
manufacturers, to submit a comprehensive Program Plan
to the Colorado Department of Public Health and
Environment by Januar2Q15. PaintCare organized a
series of stakeholder meetings to present the goals and
design of the program and to receive input from HHW
programs andther stakeholders.



Drop-Off Site Responsibilities WHAT PRODUCTS ARE COVERED?
Provide secure storage area for cubic yard boxes orf he products accepted aiR@are drop-off sites are the

drums same products that have a fee when they are sold.
Accept PaintCare products from the public during PaintCare Products include interior and exterior
normal operating hours architectural coatings sold in containers of 5 gallons or

Properly pack PaintCaredrcts in collection bins less. However, they do not include aerosol products (spray
Assist with loading and unloading of full and empty cans), industrial maintenance (IM), original equipment

storage bins manufacturer (OEM),sprecialty coatings.
Complete minimal paperwork to track outgoing paint
shipments PaintCare Products
Ensure staff are trainedRaintCare guidelines and Interior and exterior architectural paints: latex, acrylic,
safe operating procedures water-based, alkyd, oil-based, enamel (including
textured coatings)
Will PaintCare Require Operational Changes? Deck coatings, floor paints (including elastomeric)

If your program does not currently accept latex paint, Primers, sealers, undercoaters
PaintCare will not require you to do so. If you wish to  Stains

start accepting latex, PaintCare will cover the Shellacs, lacquers, varnishes, urethanes (single
transportation and processing costs. component)

If your program does not currently accept paint from;  \aterproofing concrete/masonry/wood sealers and
businesses, PaintCare will not require you to do so. If repellents (not tar or bitumen-based)

you wish to start accepting paint from businesses,
PaintCare will cover the spartation and processing
Costs.

Metal coatings, rust preventatives
Field and lawn paints
HHW programs may continue to put restrictions on

who can use their programs, e.g., to residents of
certain towns or cities.gidtCare retailers accept Paint thinners, mineral spirits, solvents

paint from anyone in the state.) Aerosol paints (spray cans)

Auto and marine paints

Art and craft paints

Caulking compounds, epoxies, glues, adhesives

Non-Paintcare Products

Water-Based (Latex) Paint is a Resource

An important goal of PaintCare is to conserve resources
and increase the amount of paint that is recycled. Not all
HHW programs accept water-based paint because it is
expensive to manage and is not classified as hazardous.
Residents and businesses are often told to let water-based
paint dry out and then dispose of the dry paint in the trash. ASPhalt, tar, and bitumen-based products

Paint additives, colorants, tints, resins
Wood preservatives (containing pesticides)
Roof patch and repair

Through the PaintCare progratinpaint, including latex 2-component coatings
paint, will be recycled to the maximum extent possible. Deck cleaners

Traffic and road marking paints
Contact Industrial Maintenance (IM) coatings
Kevin Lynch

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) (shop

Colorado Program Manager application) paints and finishes

(720)481-8858
klynch@paint.org
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FACT SHEET FOR OFFERING A REUSE PROGRALN

Reuse Programs - Compensation & Re

PaintCare encourages household hazardous waste

UPDATEP OCTOBER 2016

Method 1. Track and Report by Container

programs, reuse stores and others to operate paint reude track and report by container size, the following

programs (i.e., swap shops or exchanges). Reuse
programs return good quality unused paint to the local

applies:

community at low or no cost. Reuse is a preferred method Containers must be at least 50% full

of waste management.

To encourage reuse, PaintCare will compensate paint
drop-off sites operating a reuse program under a contract
with PaintCare. PaintCare allows two different reporting
methods by container orimlume as described here.

Operating a Reuse Program

Any PaintCare products (qyaid paint, stain and varnish
as defined by PaintCare — please see
www.paintcare.org/products-we-accept) that are
distributed through these reuse programs must be in their

The number of containers distributed for reuse must
be reported in three size categories for both latex and
oil-based (total of 6 categories)

Compensation is not provided for paint containers
smaller than 1 quart

The following compensation rates apply:

$6.00 per 5-gallon container
$1.20 per 1-gallon container
$0.30 per quart container

original container, have an original label, and be in goodhe site does not need to track or report the actual volume
physical and aesthetic conditi€ontents must be liquid  of paint in the containers. Under this model, even though
and relatively new. Containghsuld be closed securely containers may be between 50% and 100% full, PaintCare
before being placed in the reuse storage area. Customeyfil assume an average of 75% full when reporting reuse
must sign a waiver form explaining that the paint is takejolumes in annual reports to state agencies.

“as is” with no guarantee of quality or contents. The
customer is required to read, complete and sign the form,

and site staff members are required to verify and recordViethod 2. Track and Report by Volume

what has been taken by the customer.

To track and report by volume (gallons), the following

applies:

Containers may contain any amount of paint in them

The site must determine and report the total gallons of
latex paint and the total gallons of oil-based paint
distributed for reuse

Compensation is provided at $1.60 per gallon

The site must track and report the actual volume of paint
in the containers using an internal methodology (e.qg.,
weigh the cans on a scale, estimate weight by hand, do
visual inspection). The methodology must be provided to
PaintCare upon request.

Reuse room at the Houseltddardous Waste Facility at
the Yolo County Central Landfill in Woodland, CA.
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Colorado Paint Usage & Disposal Surveys

Notes:

Online surveys conducted using SurveyMonkey. Blue numbers indicate the numbegyafdests.
Questions 2, 3 and 4 allowed more than one answer; percentages are calculated usingitier of respondents

0 indicates the question was asked, but there were no responses with that answer.
NA indicates the survey that year did not include the question.

Surveys were conducted in December each year.

1. How much leftover paint is in your home?
None

Less than 1 gallon

1-5 gallons (would fit in a cardboard box)
5-15 gallons (would fit in a shopping cart)
15-30 gallons (would fit in two shopping carts)
More than 30 gallons

z U us / }v[s IVIA Z}A up Z

2. Where did the paint come from? (check all that apply)
| did some painting myself and had some leftover

| hired someone to paint and they left it behind.

| found it in my home/business when | moved in

| am a painting contractor and it is from one of my jobs

| don't remember where the paint came from

Other

3. What did you do with leftover paint? (check all that apply)
Poured it down the drain

Put can(s) of liquid paint in the trash

Dried out the paint and put it in the trash

Stored it in the basement or garage intend to use

Took it to a paint store

Took it to a household hazardous waste event or facility
Gave it away to a family, friend or community organization
Left it behind when | moved

/I }v[s Iv}A

| have never stored or disposed of leftover/unwanted paint
Other

4. If you had unwanted paint, what would you do with it?
Pour it down the drain

Put can(s) of liquid paint in the trash

Dry out the paint and put it in the trash

Take it to a paint store

Take it to a household hazardous waste event or facility
Give it away to a family, friend or organization

/I }v[s Iv}A

Other

5. Did you know that paint can be recycled?
Yes
No

2014

32.7 68
10.1 21
365 76
159 33
1.9
0.0 0
2.9 6
77.0 107
309 43
317 44
0.7
4.3
0.7 1
0.0 0
2.9
382 79
52.2 108
3.4 7
295 61
19.8 41
14.5 30
5.8 12
21 25
0.5 1
0.5 1
1.9
22.1 46
3.4 7
39.4 82
17.3 36
14.9 31
0.5 1
38.5 80
61.5 128

2015

34.1 78
10.9 25
30.1 69
20.5 47

0.4
0.0 0
3.9 9
72.8 110
24.5 37
33.1 50

0.7

5.3
2.6 Z
0.4 1

3.5
18.8 43
26.2 60
1.7 L
20.1 46
3.5 8
2.2 5
6.1 14
15.7 36
1.7 Z
0.4 1
44 10
20.5 47
10.5 24
35.4 81
14.0 32
12.2 28
2.6 6
37.6 86
62.4 143

2016

Percent Count Percent Count Percent Count

26.9 71
25.4 67
33.7 89
8.0 21
1 1.1
0.0 (
4.9 13
75.1 145
10.9 21
22.8 44
1 1.6

57 11

3.1 (
0.0 (
53 14
14.4 38
37.5 99
6.4 17
14.0 37
5.7 15
3.0 3
4.2 11
8.7 23
0.8 :
0.0 (
4.5 12
18.9 50
31.4 83
311 82
23.1 61
15.2 40
3.8 10
45.5 120
54.5 144



6. Have you ever taken paint to be recycled/disposed? If yes, when?

No
Yes, at some point during the past year
Yes, more than one year ago

7. Do you know where to take unwanted paint?
No

Yes

If yes, where? (please specify)

Responses to "If yes, where?" in December 2016:

Bould Community Disposal

Community center

Ecocycle

El Paso County Hazardous Waste Facility (3)
Fort Collins Household Hazardous Waste Facility
GreenSheen Paint Recycling Facility

Habitat for Humanity / Restore (2)

Hardware Store (6)

Household Hazardous Waste Event (7)

8. How far is the closest paint store?
Less than 1 mile

1-5 miles

5-10 miles

10-20 miles

20-30 miles

Not sure

70.2 146 78.6 180 69.7
6.7 14 3.9 9 9.5
23.1 48 17.5 40 20.8

67.3 140 75.5 173 30.3
32.7 68 24.5 56 69.7
45 32

Household Hazardous Waste Facility (12)
Jefferson County Recycling Center (2)
Landfill / Dump (7)

Larimer County Landifll & Recycling Cente
Paint Store (16)

Recycling Facility (7)

Transfer Station

Western Disposal Waste Site

22.6 47 18.8 43 13.3
56.7 118 59.0 135 62.1
8.7 18 13.5 31 13.3
2.4 5 2.2 5 4.2
3.4 7 0.9 z 15
6.3 13 5.7 13 5.7

9. How far would you drive to recycle or dispose of unwanted paint?

20-30 miles
10-20 miles
5-10 miles

1-5 miles

Less than 1 mile
Not sure

10. What county do you live in?
Adams
Arapahoe
Archuleta
Boulder
Broomfield
Chaffee
Clear Creek
Custer
Delta
Denver
Douglas
Eagle

El Paso
Elbert
Freemont
Garfield

115 24 6.1 14 8.7
14.4 30 19.2 44 31.1
32.2 67 41.5 95 29.5
25.5 53 22.3 51 19.7

2.9 6 3.1 T 1.9
13.5 28 7.9 18 9.1

3.2 5 5.3 12 8.3
8.4 13 111 25 9.8
0.0 0 0.0 0 0.8
10.3 16 6.6 15 4.9
2.6 4 2.2 5 0.8
2.6 4 0.4 1 0.4
0.6 1 0.9 z 0.4
0.6 1 0.0 0 0.0
0.0 0 0.9 z 0.4
14.2 22 15.9 36 12.9
7.1 11 5.8 13 3.8
0.0 0 0.4 1 11
11.0 17 10.6 24 13.3
1.3 2 0.4 1 0.0
0.0 0 0.0 0 1.1
0.0 0 0.4 1 0.4

184
25
55

80
184
8C

35
164
35
11

15
23
82
78
52
24
22
26

13

34
10

35



Grand 0.0 0 0.0 0
Gunnison 0.0 0 0.4 1
Jackson 0.0 0 0.0 0
Jefferson 13.5 21 11.1 25
Lake 0.0 0 0.0 0
La Plata 1.3 2 1.3 3
Larimer 10.3 16 9.7 22
Las Animas 0.0 0 1.3 3

0.0 0 0.0 0
Logan 0.0 0 0.4 1
Mesa 1.3 2 2.2 5
Montezuma 0.0 0 0.0 0
Montrose 0.6 1 0.4 1
Morgan 0.0 0 0.0 0
Otero 0.0 0 0.0 0
Ouray 0.6 1 0.0 0
Park 1.3 2 0.9 P
Pitkin 0.0 0 0.4 1
Prowers 0.6 1 0.0 0
Pueblo 3.2 5 3.5 )
Routt 0.6 1 0.0 0
Summit 1.3 2 0.9 P
Teller 0.0 0 0.4 1
Weld 3.2 5 5.8 13

Note: In 2014 we asked respondents to type in their county, rather than choose fronb4 fisgple did
enter their county. Their responses are not used in the total for pageicalculations in order to
have relative numbers for those who responded. The counties with no responsethfeeatears

are not listed. In 2015, three respondents skipped this question.

11. How would you describe the place where you live?

Urban / Major City 21.4 44 24.0 55
Suburban 48.5 100 48.0 110
Small City or Town 17.5 36 16.6 38
Rural / Countryside 12.6 26 10.0 23
Other (please specify) 0.0 0 1.3 3
12. Where do you live?

Single-family house 72.8 150 71.2 163
Two or three-family house 3.9 8 3.9 9
Condominium or apartment building with many units 204 42 21.8 50
Manufacturered or Mobile Home 1.9 4 1.3 3
Other (please specify) 1.0 2 1.7 L
13. Do you paint professionally?

Yes 0.5 1 11 L
No 99.5 207 62.0 225

14. What is your age?

Under 21 2.9 6 1.7 L
21-40 28.8 60 31.9 73
41-60 46.2 96 36.7 84
Over 60 22.1 46 26.6 61

Prefer not to say NA 3.1 7

0.4
0.0
0.4
11.0
0.4
0.4
10.2
0.0
0.4
0.8
2.7
0.4
0.8
0.8
15
0.0
0.0
0.4
0.8
3.4
0.0
0.4
0.8
6.1

not

25.4
48.5
16.7
9.1
0.4

65.2
6.4

23.9
2.3
2.3

3.4
96.6

8.3
54.5
24.2
12.9

0.0

29

27

16

67
128
44
24

172
17
63

255

22
144
64
34



15. Gender
Male

Female

Prefer not to say

16. Educational Level

Some High School

High School Graduate

Some College, Vocational, Trade, or Technical
4 year degree or higher

Prefer not to say

17. What is your household income?
Less than $50K

TRt i<

TPt ifAi<

Over $150K

Prefer not to say

47.6 99
52.4 109
NA

1.0 2
6.7 14
30.3 63
62.0 129
0.0 0
30.3 63
30.8 64
14.4 30
13.0 27
115 24

43.2
53.7
3.1

0.9
5.2
28.4
62.9
2.6

31.0
33.6
15.3

6.6
13.5

99
123

2P

12
65
144
6

71
77
35
15
31

27.3
72.0
0.8

2.7
14.4
37.1
44.7

11

45.5
31.8
13.6
2.7
6.4

72
190

38
98
118

120
84
36

17
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